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independent Auditor’s Report

To the School Board
Independent School District No. 709
Duluth, Minnesota

Repott on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Independent School District No. 708, Duluth, Minnesota (District), as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia! statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards applicable
to financiat audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnabile assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal contro!. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.
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Opinions

I our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmentat activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the District, as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States.

Other Matters
Requiired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that the management’s discussion and
analysis on pages 5 through 15, the budgstary comparison information, information about the District's other
postemployment health care plan, and information about the District's net pension liability, pages 72 through 74,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statementis. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
sconamic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance,

Suppletmentary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financia! statements that collectively comprise
the District's financial statements as a whole. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules, and fiscal compiiance table, pages 75 through 82, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial
staternents and schedules, and fiscal compliance table are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves,
and other additionat procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In
oyr opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and fiscal compliance table
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

We have previcusly audited, in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States, the
District's basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018, which are not presented with the
accompanying financial statements and we expressed unmodified opinions on the respective financial statements
of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information. That audit was
conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's
basic financial statements as a whole. The individual fund schedules and combining other funds statements for
the year ended June 30, 2016, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsivility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2016 basic financial
statements. The information was subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of those basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accouniting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements of to the basic financial
statements themseives, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. In our opinion, the 2016 individual fund schedules and combining other funds
statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements from which they
have been derived.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

in accordance with Gavernment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1, 2017 on
our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an sudit performed in accordance with Governmant Auditing Standards in
considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

W%m LLP
Wipfli LLP

December 1, 2017
Culuth, Minnesota
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709 - DULUTH PUBLIC SCHOOLS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2017

As management of Independent School District No. 709 (District), we offer readers of the
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial
activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The District’s total net position of governmental activities decreased
approximately $43 million versus 2016 to $(27,724,278) primarily due to an
increase in deferred outflows of resources related to our financial presentation of
pension expenses.

e Overall program and general revenues were $135.5 million, $4.2 million less than
related expenses of $139.8 million excluding pension expense of $38.5 million.

o General revenues accounted for $99.7 million, or 73.6% of all fiscal year 2017
revenues. This amount is approximately the same percentage of total revenues as
the prior year. Program specific revenues of $35.7 million (related to services,
grants and contributions) accounted for 26% of total fiscal 2017 revenues. This
represents a decrease of $.6 million versus the prior vear.

¢ The District spent approximately $178.4 million on governmental activities that
includes $38.5 million in pension expense. Excluding the pension expense, this
represents an increase of $18 million (equal to 15%) versus prior year. Increases
of $16 million in regular instruction, special education instruction, and sites and
buildings and $2.8 million of reduced expenses relating largely to administration
and support services, had the primary impact on this change.

e Among major funds, the General fund had $101.9 mitlion in revenues, consisting
mainly of state aids and local property taxes, and $104.9 million in expenditures.
This resulted in a deficit of $3 million. As a result, the fund balance was reduced
to $.1 million.



- OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial section of the annual report consists of four parts — Independent Auditor’s
Report, Required Supplementary Information which inciudes the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (this section), the Basic Financial Statements, and Supplemental
Information. The District’s basic financial statements comprise three components:

1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial starements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets and
deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflow of resources, with the
difference between the two reported as ner position. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as
soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some
items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused compensated absences).

The government-wide financial statements outline functions of the District that are
principally supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities). 'The governmental activities of the District include instruction, support
services, operation and maintenance of plant, student transportation, and operation of
non-instructional services,

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objectives. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the District’s near-
term financing requirements.



Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may
better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation o facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

Proprietary Funds. The District uses an internal service fund to report activities
that provide supplies and services for the District’s other programs and activities.
The District currently has one internal service fund for self-insured dental
benefits.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the
benefit of parties outside the District. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are
not available to support the District’s own programs. The accrual basis of
accounting is used for fiduciary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying
notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning
the District’s budget process. The District adopts an annual expenditure budget for all
governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
General fund as required supplementary information.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental
funds are presented immediately following the major budgetary comparisons.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net Position

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. This presentation has been impacted significantly recently as the District
adopted GASRB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
(GASB Statement No. 71 Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date — An Amendment of GASE Statement No. 68.

Duluth Public Schools
Statement of Net Position

As of June 30,
Total Percentage
2017 A Change
Current and Other Assets $188,206,821 $109,834,869 71%
Capital Assets $294,153.7014 $301.671.578 {(2)%
Total Assets $482,360,552 $411,506,447 17%
Total Deferred $171,890,098 $40,985,833 319%
Qutflows of
Resources
Total Assets and $654,250,620 $452,492,280 45%
Deferred Qutflows
of Resources
Long-term Liabilities $625210G,115 $375,432,010 67%
Other Liabilities $24.050.467 $27.807.416 {14)%
Total Liabilities $649.260,582 $403,239,426 61%
Total Deferred $32,714,316 $34,038,078 ()%
Inflows of
Resources
Net Position/(Liabilities)
Net investment in
capital assets $62,473,463 $59,594 821 3%
Restricted $80,609,732 $2,756,839 2824%
Unrestricted (deficit) $(170.807.473) $(47,1306.884) 262%
Total Net §(27,724.278) $15,214,776 (282)%

Position/(Liability)

District Assets of $482.4 million include, $24 million in unrestricted cash, receivables of
$31 million, nearly all of which is made up of property tax and state aid receivables,
capital assets being depreciated of $284 million, $133 million in restricted cash (for debt
service), $10 million in undepreciated capital assets, and §0.4 million in other assets.

Deferred outflows of rescurces includes approximately $172 million for pension related

items.

District Liabilities of $649.2 million include $610.3 million in Long-term Debt (facilities
plan and future pension liabilities), $23 million due to employees and vendors for



expenditures incurred but not paid as of fiscal year-end, and $15.9 million in other
liabilities.

Deferred Inflows of Resources of $32.7 million includes $30.6 million of property taxes
levied for subsequent years’ expenditures and $2 million for pension related items.



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Source of Revenues for Fiscal Year 2017

Property Taxes,
23% . State Aid-Formula

Grants, 48%

Operating Grants
! and Contiributions,
21% Charges for

Services, 5% Other, 1%

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2017

) Interest & Fiscat Community . \
Adminstration Charges on Long education and Food Service, 2.8%
3.5% Term Debt 11% Services, 5.4% Sites and Buﬂdingsl

District Support 13.7%

Services 2.3% Pupil Support

Services, 5.9%

nstructional
Support
Services 3.8%

Elementary &
Secondary Regular
Instruction 33.2% Vocational Special Education

Education instruction 16.6%
Instruction 1%
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Changes in Net Position

In the following table, the change in net position and operations are reported on a

government-wide basis with no reference to funds.

Revenues:
Program revenues:

_ Charges for Sﬁrw:es

Opfzﬂtmg grants and mﬂﬁ"&uﬁﬂﬂs .

' Propm’cy taxes
~ State aids
Other
 Total Revennes

E Xpenses:
Administration
 District support services

:Eiamentar} and secondary regular mﬁtmmon‘

B '\ acational education mstruction
Special education instruction
Anstructional suppart services
{Pupil support services

Sites and buildines

“Fiscal and other fixed program costs

Food service

Communty Service

Interest and fiscal chmges o1 1ong—‘fann d&bt_ .

*Pension expense
Total expenses

Change in net position

Beginning of year net position
Prior Period Adjustment
Net position restated

End of year net position (deficit)

Duluth Public Schools
Chzume in Net ?osﬁmn
For the Yea: ended Juue 30,

o e e

L]

W on 0D e 0 s O 60D BT T GO U T A

2017

952 31.3

28757404

31,724,863
| 66,232,583
1,760,441
135,437,004

5,026,374
3340170
85,009,150
1,466,368
237221114
5,328,829 |
R373414:
18294425
299,573 -
4,030,346
7,561,786 -

15,424,000

178,376,058

(42,939,054)

15214,776

- (27,724.278),

R Y A R R L m_w:m s

W@ W

31464419 ¢
66,314,745
i 58”* 5:4 i
136 767,845

12820579
(172,391,491}
(50.838,532)

187,606,377

(73481,113)

1,089,512

(172,391,601
15,214,776 .

Total %

Change

—10?10"}? e

-450.9%
-122.9%

-108.8%

S282%

FDueto ﬂle merger oi‘ the DTR_FA and TRA oL June 30 “QE 3, them was & ci%xﬁuant chaﬂve in the, stmct s

proportionate share in DTRFA's net pension Hebility dmma the measiwement partod that cansed a

significant negative pension expense.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

At the end of the 2016-17 fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a
combined fund balance of $140.9 million, an increase of $81.4 million from the prior
year combined fund balance of $59.5 million. This resulted from the refunding of
Certificates of Participation Series 20088 by issuing Refunding Certificates of
Participation Series 2010A.

General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for all revenues and expenditures of the school
district not accounted for elsewhere. The General Fund is used to account for: PK-12
educational activities; district instructional and student support programs; expenditures

for the superintendent; district administration; normal operations and maintenance; pupil
transportation; capital expenditures; and legal school district expenditures not specifically

designated to be accounted for in any other fund.

Enrollment is a critical factor in determining revenue. Like most Minnesota school
districts, the District is facing declining enrollment. These declines have largely

stabilized at the Elementary and Middle School levels. The following chart reflects that

the number of students has decreased over the last six years with a small increase in
2017,

Student Enrollment
Average Daily Membership (ADM)

DULUTH PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Student Enrollment {Iin ADMs)

10,000.00

8,000.00
6,000.0C ®9-12

Eﬁ "
4,000.00 68

@ PK-5
2,000.00

H

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General fund adopted revenue budget of $103.6 million was revised upward to $105.4
million as a result of a $0.5 million increase in Title programs, a $1 million increase for
grants and donations related to student and curriculum support, and $0.3 million in
miscellaneous revenues.
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General fund adopted expenditure budget of $103.6 million was increased by $3.9
million to $107.5 million. In addition to the $1.5 million of additions identified in the
preceding paragraph, there was $2.2 million added to the budget to allow spending from
the prior year reserve for textbooks and restricted funds.

General fund revenues were $3.4 million less than the revised budget (a difference of
3.2%). This was in part due to a formula change in special education funding and a
reduction in enrollment that was greater than expected.

General fund spending was $2.6 million less than the revised budget, a difference of
2.4%. Spending was reduced to try to offset the reduction in revenues and reflects the
decline in enrollment.

The General Fund balance decreased $3 million to a total of $.1 million as follows:

¢ Unassigned fund balance decreased by $2.8 million to a total deficit of $485,684.
o Restricted fund balances decreased by $93,583 to a total of $468,873.
¢ Non-spendable fund balances decreased by $46,347 to a total of $128,409.

Foeod Service Fund

The Food Service Fund revenues for 2016-17 totaled $4,031,023 or $276,983 more than
the final budget. Expenditures were $4,030,346 or $120,291 less than the final budget.
The resulting surplus of $677 increased the year-end fund balance to $902,048.

Community Service Fund

The Community Service Fund revenues for 2016-17 totaled $7,398,752 or $332,234
more than the final budget. Expenditures were $7,439,480 or $185,280 more than the

final budget. The resulting deficit of $40,728 decreased the year-end fund balance to
$1,287,862.

Capital Projects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund revenues for 2016-17 totaled $1,432 or $1,432 more than the

final budget. Expenditures totaled $3,129,913 million or $1,059,993 million more than

the final budget. The resulting deficit of $3,128,481 million reduced the fund balance to
$187.

Bebt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to record revenues and expenditures for a school distriet’s
outstanding bonded indebtedness, whether for building construction or operating capital
acquired through either initial or refunding bonds. Revenues for 2016-17 totaled
$22,133,371 or $1,284,720 more than the final budget. Expenditures totaled $20,158,280
or $8,525,973 less than the final budget. Other Financing Sources and Uses inciuded
proceeds from a bond refunding in the amount of $82,605,000 and premium on bonds of
$11,521,782 as sources and bond refunding payments from escrow accounts as a use of
$8,522,522. The resulting surplus of $87,579,351 increased the fund balance to
$£138,597,855 million.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

By the end of fiscal 2017, the District had over $355 million invested in a broad range of
capital assets, reflecting the impact of our Long Range Facilities Plan. Depreciation of
$60.9 miliion has been taken on existing items. As of June 30, 2017, the District had
capital items, which had a depreciated value of $294.1 million. Most of the capital
investment is in buildings and equipment.

I1SD 709 CAPITAL ASSETS
%
2017 2016 Change

Land $10,021,410 | $11,692,735 | (14)%
Land Improvement $2,496,358 $2,595,576 | ()%
Buildings and Improvements $335,178,420 | $334,100,561 0.0%
Equipment $7,364,660 $8,133,622 1 (9%
Less: Accumulated Depreciation $(60,907.147) | $(54,850,916) 11%
TOTAL L $294,153,701 | $301,671,578 | (2)%

Long-Term Liabilities

At year-end, the District had $353.5 million of outstanding bonds payable and certificates
of participation. This reflects an increase of $64.5 million versus the principal amount of
$289 million outstanding at June 30, 2016, State statute limits the District’s debt to 15%
of the fair market value of property in the District. This sets the District debt limit at
approximately $922.9 million as of June 30, 2017.

The remainder of long-term labilities is the $29 million recognized for severance
benefits and other post-employments benefits (OPEB). This represents an increase of $.6
million versus prior year. The final item represents the net pension liability of $227.7
million, an increase of $169.7 million versus 2016 due to a change in proportionate share
for TRA.

ISD 709 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

%
2017 2016 Change
Certificates of Participation $263,135425 | $195215,425 35%
General Obligation Bonds $90.,445,000 $93,785,000 (4%
Other Postemployment Benefits $4,210,675 $3,458,553 22%
Severance Obligation $24.803,441 $24,897,997 0%
Net Pension Liability $227,742,940 $58,075,035 292%
TOTAL $6106,337,481 | $375,432,010 63%
Long-Term Liabilities
Due within one year $20,509,926 $14,895,588 38%
Due in more than one year $589,827,555 1 $360,536,422 64%
TOTAL $610,337.481 | $375,432,010 63%
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ECONOMIC AND BUDGETARY FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S
FUTURE

In November, 2013, the District presented two operating referendum questions for the
consideration of the voters. Both referendum questions passed, and will be in place
through FY19. As a result, the District will realize approximately $1.8 million annually
in new tax revenues, along with $1.1 million annually in new equalization aid from the
State of Minnesota.,

In addition to the revenue noted above, the state legislature approved increases to the
basic formula allowance, and funding for early childhood education as part of the 2015
session. These increases are spread between FY16 and FY17.

Other factors affecting the District’s future financial condition include the following:

Declining enrollment — as the population of school-age children residing in the District
declines, District revenues decline, as most of our funding 1s based on the number of
pupils served in the District. A demographic study completed in 2017 projects slight
declines in enrollment for the next five years.

School choice — in addition to population decline, more residents have chosen
educational options other than the District. Increases in charter schools, home schooling
and private school enrollment has contributed to pupil and corresponding revenue loss.

State Budget ~Since K-12 education makes up over 40% of state spending and because
State revenues account for over 76% of the District’s General revenues, the District will
be impacted by decisions made relative to education spending.

Medical Insurance — premium increases have been reduced through a plan change to a
high-deductible statewide insurance plan. The District continues to work with employees
to reduce the utilization of prescription drugs and medical services. As a result of these
efforts, the District has realized a reduction of 8% in premiums for FY12, and an
additional reduction of 5% for FY 13 with subsequent increases being reasonable at
5.4%, 1.7% and 0.7% from FY 14 through FY16. The increase for FY17 was 6.8%.

Retiree benefits (severance) — this large liability exceeds the amounts currently set aside
1o pay these benefits upon retirements, This may impact the General tund, as interest
earned on any invested funds will accrue to the trust for severance and not be available as
General fund revenue.

DISTRICT FINANCIAL CONTACT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s
accountability for the resources it receives and utilizes. Should you have questions about
this report, or need additional information, please contact:

Office of Business Services, ISD #709
215 N. 1* Avenue East, Duluth, MN 55802
or call 218-336-8704
Financial and other district information 1s also available on the District website at
www.isd709.0rg
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables
Taxes
Accounts and interest recelvabie
Due from other governmentat units
inventory
Prepayments
Restricted assets
Cash and investments for debt service
Cash and investments for capital projects
Capital assets, net of depreciation
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated

Total assets

Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Pension related items

Totsl assets and deferred outflows of resources

Liabiiities
Salaries payable
Accounts and contracts payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governmental units
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue

Long term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Unamortized premium and discount, net

Totatl liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes levied for subsequent years' expenditures
Pension related items

Totai deferred inflows of resources

Net Position (Deficit}
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
State Restrictions
Food Service
Community Service
Debt Service
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total net position (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of rescurces and net position (deficit)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

Exhibit 1

Governmental
Activities

$ 23,880,513

19,268,678
664,265
11,074,578
189,031
68,208

132,961,361
187

10,021,410

284,132,281

$ 482,360,522

171,890,098

$ 854,250,620

& 10,917,055
3,212,150
8,902,044

284,149

37,221
447,090
250,758

20,509 926
589,827,558
14,872,634

$ 849260582

30,835,764

2,078,552

$ 32714316

$ 62,473,483

468,873
776,703
1,354,884
78,009,272
(170,807,473)

3 (27,724278)

$ 654250620



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Functions/Programs Expenses
Governmental Activities

Administration 3 5,026,374
District Support Services 3,340,170
Regular Instruction 85,009,159
Vocationat Education Instruction 1,466,868
Special Education Instruction 23,221,114
instructional Support Services 5,328,829
Pupil Support Services 8,373,414
Sites and Buildings 19,294,425
Fiscal and Other Fixed Cost Programs 299,573
Food Service 4,030,346
Community Service 7,661,786
Inferest and Fiscal Charges on Long Term Debt 15,424 000

Total Gevernmental Activities 3 178,376,058

Page 17
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,



Exhibit 2

Net (Expenses)
Revenue and

Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Granis and Grants and Governmental
Services Contributions Contributions Activities
$ $ 115,569 § 3 (4,910,805)
140,632 (3,199,638)
3,141,216 3,811,675 (78,056,268)
8,736 131,432 (1,326,700)
558,998 11,386,516 (1@ 165,602)
17,094 1,612,831 (3,898,904}
63,716 2,581,725 {5,727 ,973)
1,098 - {19,293,327)
(299,573)
1,281,783 2,749,240 677
1,779,674 4,532,057 (1,250,055)
1,685,827 {13,738,173)
3 6,952,313 % 28,757,404 % $  {142,666,341)
(General Revenues
Taxes
Property Taxes, levied for General Purposes 3 12,413,369
Property Taxes, levied for Community Service 940,661
Property Taxes, levied for Debt Service 18,370,833
State aid-formula grants 66,232,983
Other general revenues 1,092,208
Invesiments Earnings 877,233
Total General Revenues 3 09,727,287
Change in net position $ {42,939,054)
Net position - beginning 15,214,776
Net position (deficit) - ending $ (27,724 278)

Page 18



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Balance Sheet
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2017

Capital
General Projects
Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and temporary investments 3 8,937,301 3 187
Cash and investments with fiscat agent
Taxes and credits receivable 8,126,301
Accounis and interest receivable 163,832
Due from
Other Minnesota schooi districts 1,390,341
Department of Education 7,670,539 -
Federal through Depariment of Education 1,128,377
Federal - direct 5,045
Other governmental units 34,463
Inventory 85,202
Prepayments 63,207
Total Assets $ 255848608 % 187
Deferred Quiflows of Resources
Total Assets and deferred outflows of
resources $ 2B5B4608 % 187

The notes to the financial statements are an integra! part of this statement. Page 19



Pebt Total
Service Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
3 13,976,159 § 2683098 3 23,801,745
132,861,361 132,861,361
10,544,532 587,845 19,268,678
482 171 16,903 662,906
1,390,341
221,311 342 B35 8,234,485
72,587 1,200,984
209,280 214,325
34 483
123,829 189,031
5,001 68,208
$ 158185534 % 4056178 % 187825507
$ 158185534 $ 4056178 $ 187,826,507

Exhibit 3

Page 20



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709

DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Balance Sheet

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2017

Liabitities
Salaries payable
Accounts and interest payable
Due to

Other funds

Other governmental units
Claims payable
Construction contracts
Unearned revenue

Total Liabiiities
Deferred inflows of resources
Froperty taxes levied for subsequent year's expenditures

Unavailable revenue - delinquent property faxes

Total deferred inflows of resources

General
Fund

Capital
Projects
Fund

10,533,695
2,650,875

187,716
37,221
108,172
70,081
127,651

13,716,211

11,061,401
696578

11,756,979

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit 3
{Continued)

Debt Total
Service Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
3 3 383,380 $ 10,917,055
1,750 277,597 2,930,022
96,433 284 149
37,221
109,172
70,081
9,528 137,180
$ 1,780 % 766,819 § 14,484,880

$ 18545521 § 1028842 $ 30,635,764
1,040,408 70,507 1,806,493

S 19585929 § 1099349 $§ 324427257

Page 22



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Balance Sheef
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2017

Capital
General Projects
Fund Fund
Fund Balance

NonSpendable:

Inventory 3 65202 %

Prepayments 63,207
Restricted for:

Beond refunding -

Teacher Development & Evaluation 100,800

Long Term Facilities Maintenance 179,282 -

Projects funded by COP 187

AlLC 188,791

Debt service

Food service

Community education

Early childhood family education

School readiness

Aduit basic education

Community service
Unassighed

General (485 864)

Total Fund Balance $ 111,418 & 187
Total Liabiities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and

Fund Baiance 3 25584608 % 187

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 23



Debt Total
Service Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
$ 123,828 3 188,031
5,001 68,208
132,961,361 132,861,361
100,800
179,282
187
188,751
5,636 494 5,636,494
776,703 776,703
773,759 773,759
195,894 195,884
260,060 260,080G
24,659 24,659
30,008 30,005
(485,864)
$ 138,587,855 2189916 $ 140,898,370
3 158,185,534 4,056,178 § 187,826,507

Exhibit 3
{Continued)
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the
Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities
June 30, 2017

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial

resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.
Cost of capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

L.ong-term iiabiiities, including bonds payabie, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bond principal payable
Certificates of participation

Long-term liabilities, including severance payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as Habilities in the funds.

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Delinquent property taxes receivable will be collected this year, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures, and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Governmental funds do not report a Hability for accrued interest until
due and payable.

The net pension liability and the deferred outflows of resources and inflow of resources related
to pensions are only reported in the statement of net position.
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Changes in net other post-employment benefits obligations are reported only in the
statement of activities.

Governmental funds report debt issuance premiums and discounts as an other financing
source or use at the time of issuance, whereas, these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of net position.

An internal service fund is used by management tc charge the costs of dental insurance to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net postion.

Total net position (deficit) - governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 4

$ 140,899,370

365,060,848
(60,907,147)

(90,445,000)
(263,135,425)

(24,803,441)

(447,080)

1,806,493

(8,902,044)

(227,742,940)
(2,078,552)
171,890,098

{4,210,675)

(14,872,634)

163,861

$ (27.724278)
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NOQ. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Capital
General Projects
Fund Fund
Revenues
Local property tax levies $ 12459353 % -
Interest income 108,910 1,432
Other local and county 4.085,377 -
State sources 78,037,330 -
Federal sources 6,524,445
insurance/Judgement recovery 84,785
Sales and other conversions of assets 657,415
Total Revenues $ 101,957,615 % 1,432
Expenditures
Administration $ 50098086 %
District support services 2,800,224
Regular instruction 45,613,382
Vocational instruction 1,420,996
Special education instruction 23,214,740
Community education and services 89,191
Instructicnal support services 5,279,209
Pupil support services 7,887,262
Sites, buiidings and equipment 8,131,440 -
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 330,174
Debt service
Principal 1,830,000
Interest and fiscal charges 1,540,835
Capital outlay 1,798,687 3,129,913
Total Expenditures P 104043846 3 3,129,913
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures $ (2,886,231 §  (3,128,481)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of property $ 1,001 ¢ -
Proceeds from bonds and loans, net - -
Bond refunding payments from escrow
Premium cn bonds
Tota! Other Financing Scurces (Uses) $ 1,001 $ -
Net change in fund balance $ (2,985230) 3% (3,128481)
Fund Balance
Beginning of Year 3,096,648 3,128,668
End of Year 3 111,418 § 187

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 27



Debt Toia}
Service Other Governmental
Fund Funds Funds
18,407,310 § 944,396 3% 21,811,053
568 891 677,233
1,955,132 6,040,509
2227094 2,770,333 83,034,757
932,076 4499109 11,955,630
- 84,785
1,260,811 1,818,226
22,133,371 $ 11420775 § 135,522,193
$ 3 5,009,606
2,800,224
45,613,382
1,420,966
23,214,740
7424 128 7,513,319
5,279,208
3,877,037 11,864 298
8,131,440
330,174
11,495 000 13,325,000
8,663,280 10,204,215
58,661 4,995,261
20,158,280 % 11,468.826 % 139,701,865
1,875,081 3 {40,051 § {4,179,672)
3 $ 1,001
82,805,000 82,605,000
{8,522 522) {8,522,522)
11,521,782 11,521,782
85604260 3% 3 85,605,261
87 578,351 3 (40,051} % 81,425,580
51,018,504 2,229,961 59,473,781
138,507,855 % 2189910 $ 140,899,370

Exhibit 5

Page 28



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NOQ. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Exhibit 6
Reconciliation of the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
o the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2017
Total net changes in fund balances - governmental funds $ 81425589
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:
Capital cutlays are reporied in governmental funds as expenditures. However in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is aliocated over the estimated usefui lives as depreciation
expense.
Capital outlays 1,677,022
Disposatl of capital assets {1,855,203)
Depreciation expense {7,239,696)
The amount of bond proceeds is reporied in the governmental funds as a source of financing.
Bond proceeds are not revenues in the statement of activities, but rather constitute
long-term liabifities. (82,605,000)
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 18,025,000
Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when i is due
and thus requires the use of current financial resocurces. In the statement of activities, however
interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues regardless of when it is due. {1,704,632)
Net amortization of premiums and discounts. {11,214,413)
Change in severance and post-employment benefits is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. (657 566)
Payment of compensated absences is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces fong-term fiabilities in the statement of net position. (140,6802)
Pension expense is reported in the governmental funds when amounts are paid. The statement
of activities reports the value of benefits earned during the year.
Change in deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 130,904,265
Change in deferred inflows of resources refated to pensions 269,676
Change in net pension liability (169,667,905)
Delinguent property taxes receivable will be coliected this year, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditure and therefore are deferred in the funds. (86,180)
The change in net position of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. 30,801
Change in net position (deficit) - governmental activities $ (42,939,054

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 29



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - DENTAL PLAN

PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2017

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Accounts and interest receivable
Totai Assets
Deferred Qutflows of Resources
Total Assets and Deferred Outfiows of Resources
Liabilities
Current Lizahilities
Claims payable
Unearned revenue
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resouces, and Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 7

378,855
1,358

380,314

380,314

102,875
13,578

216,453

163,861

163,861

380,314
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Exhibit 8
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - DENTAL PLAN
PRCOPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Operating revenues
Charges for Premiums, Net of Refunds $ 847 226
Total Operating Revenues $ 847,228
Operating expenses
Employee benefits $ 758,173
Services, supplies, and fees 57,452
Total Operating Expenses 3 816,625
Change in net position 3 30,601
Total Net Position - Beginning 133,260
Total Net Position - Ending & 163,861

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 31



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND - DENTAL PLAN
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided
Receipts from ratirees
Payments for administrative costs
Payments for claims

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Changes in net pasition
Provided by Operating Activities
{Increase) in Account Receivable
Increase in Accounts Payable
Increase in Unearned Revenue

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Exhibit 8

517,303
327 449
(57.452)
(734,166)

53,134

325,821

378,955

30,601

(262)
25,007
(2,212)
22,533

53,134

Page
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Exhibit 10
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2017
Federal
Employee
Benefit Private~
Trust Purpose
Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and tempcerary investments 3 1,567,675 151,038
interest receivable 241
Due from other funds 284 149
Total Assets 3 1,852,065 151,038
L.iabilities
Total Liabilities $ - -
Net Position
Restricted for endowment 3 132,033
Restricted for clock tower 19,005
Restricted for retirees 1,852 0665
Total Net Position 3 1,852,065 151,038
Total Liabilities and Net Position 3 1,852,065 151,038

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA
Exhibit 11

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal
Employee
Benefit Private-
Trust Purpcse
Fund Funds
Additions
Interfund contribution $ 284148 §
Investment earmings
Interest 10,408 585
Total Additions $ 204,556 § 585
Deductions
Benefits % 200,000 3
Total Deductions 3 200,000 %
Change in Net Position % 94556 % 585
Net Position - Beginning 1,757,509 150,453
Net Position - Ending $ 1,852,065 § 151,038

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. Page 34



1.

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of independent Schoo! District No. 709 (District) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applied to governmental units. The Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

. Financial Reporting Entity

The District is an instrumentality of the State of Minnesota established to function as an
educational institution. The Board of Education consists of elected officials and is
responsible for legisiative and fiscal control of the District. A Superintendent is
appointed by the Board of Education and is responsible for administrative contro! of the
District.

The District's financial statements include all funds, departments, agencies, hoards,
commissions, and other component units for which the District is considered to be
financially accountable.

Component units are legally separate entiies for which the District (primary
government) is financially accountable, or for which the exclusion of the component unit
would render the financial statements of the primary government misleading. The
criteria used to determine if the primary government is financially accountable for a
component unit inciude whether or not the primary government appoints the voting
majority of the potential component unit's governing body, is able to impose its will on
the potential compenent unit, is in a refationship of financial benefit or burden with the
potential component unit, or is fiscally depended upon by the potential component unit.

Based on these criteria, there are no organizations considered to be component units of
the District.

The financial transactions of student activities are included in the financial statements.
Student activities are established by various student organizations {(which have District
employees as advisors). Amounts are usually generated and spent at the discretion of
the student organizations and faculty advisors. The Schoo! Board has chosen to
directly controf the activities.

Basic Financial Statement Presentation

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net position and the
Statement of Activities) display information about the reporting government as a whole.
These statements include all the financial activities of the District except for the fiduciary
funds. The Fiduciary Funds are only reported in the Statements of Fiduciary Net
position at the fund financial statement level,

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational; or capital requirements of a

Page 35



1.

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

particutar function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are repotted instead as general revenues,

Separate FFund financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmentai funds are reported as separate columns in the
financial statements.

The Internal Service Fund is presented in the proprietary fund financial statements.
Because the principal user of the internal services is the District's governmental
activities, the financial statement of the internal service fund is consolidated into the
governmental column when presented in the governmental-wide financial statements.
The cost of these services is reported in the appropriated functional activity.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenue of the District's internal service fund is
charges fo customers for service. Operating expenses for the internal service fund
include the cost of services. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purpose
for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available. Depreciation
expense can be specifically identified by function and is included in the direct expenses
of each function. Interest on general long-term debt is considered an indirect expense
and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities. The effect of interfund activity
has been removed from the district-wide financial statements.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds and fiduciary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements. Aggregate information for the remaining non-major
governmaentai funds is reported in a single column in the fund financia! statements.

The fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type
(pension and agency). Since, by definition, these assets are being held for the benefit
of a third party (private parties, severance obfigations, etc.) and cannot be used to
address activities or obligations of the District, these funds are not incorporated into the
district-wide statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting freatment applied is determined by its
measurement focus and basis of accounting. The district-wide financial statements are
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting as are fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred regardiess of the timing
of related cash flows. Property taxes are generally recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year for which they are levied, except for amounts advance recognized in accordance
with a statutory “tax shift”. Grants and similar items are recognized when all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
rescurces measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
basis of accounting transactions are recorded in the following manner:

1. Revenue Recognition — Revenue is recognized when it becomes measurable and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Property tax revenue is
generaily considered as available if collected within 60 days after year-end. State
revenue is recognized in the year to which it applies according to Minnesota
Statutes. Minnesota Statutes include state aid funding formulas for specific fiscal
years. Federal revenue is recorded in the year in which the related expenditure is
made. Other revenue is considered available if collected within one year.

2. Recording of Expenditures - Expenditures are generally recorded when a fiability is
incurred. However, expenditures are recorded as prepaid for approved
disbursements or liabilities incurred in advance of the year in which the item is to be
used. Principal and interest on long-term debt issues are recognized on their due
dates.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing
operations, The principal operating revenues of the Internal Service Fund are
employee and District contributions. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include
claims paid and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting
these definitions are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Basis of Presentation

The District has established funds to account for and segregate the financial
consequences of its varicus activities. The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity,
revenues, and expenditures or expenses. Resources are allocated to and accounted
for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and by
how such activities are controlled. Descriptions of the funds included in this report are
as follows:

Major Governmental Funds

The General Fund of the District accounts for administration, kindergarten through 12%
grade instruction, transporting students to and from school, purchases of land,
buildings, improvements, equipment, and textbooks, majar repairs, activities and other
costs to the District and related revenues.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for construction of facility additions financed by levy
or bonds.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the retirement of bonds issued for kindergarten
through 12" grade projects and payments of related interest. The assets of this fund
are legally restricted to the aforementioned purpose.
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Non-major Governmental Funds

The Food Service Fund accounts for meals provided to students. Revenues consist of
state and federai aids and grants and sales to pupils and aduls.

The Community Services Fund accounts for instruction of persons not in kindergarten
through 12" grades. Revenues consist of state and federal aids and grants and
participation fees.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. These
funds account for operations that are primarily financed by user charges. The District's
internal service fund is used to account for dental benefits for employees who are
covered by the dentat self-insured plan of the District.

Fiduciary Funds

The Private Purpose Funds account for principal and unexpended earnings of the
Miller Memorial Playground endowment and the Clock Tower endowment.

Federal Employee Benefit Trust Fund accounts for employees’ severance for federally
funded programs.

E. Budget Policies and Basis

The School Board is responsibie for the budget and for the District's financial
performance against the budget. District employees prepare a proposed budget on
the modified accrual basis of accounting. The budget is amended and approved by
the Board before the beginning of the fiscal year as required by Minn. Stat. § 123.B.77,
subd. 4. The Board reviews the District's financial progress against the budget
regularly throughout the year.

Budget and Budgetary Accounting

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management control for alf funds of the
District. For each fund for which a formal budget is adopted the same basis of
accounting is used to reflect actual revenues and expenditures recognized on the
basis of accounting principies generally accepted in the United States.

Reported budget amounts represent the originally adopted budget as amended.
Expenditures in excess of the budget require approval of the School Board.
Employees report significant deviations from budget line amounts to the Board as they
are recognized throughout the year. The annual budget is not legally binding on the
District unless the District has a total deficit in its K-12 general and operating funds that
exceed 2.5 percent of expenditures. The budget is adopted through passage of a
resolution. The School Board must approve revisions that alter total expenditures of
any fund without offsetting revenues.
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

F.

Cash and Temporary Invesiments

Cash and investments of the individual funds are combined to form a pool, except for
the fiduciary funds, and are invested, to the extent avaiiabie, in securities as
authorized by state law. Investment income is reported in the General, Capital, and
Fiduciary Funds. Funds with negative cash balances are not charged interest.
Certificates of deposits and securities of the U.S. government and its agencies are
recorded at fair value, based on quoted market price. External investment pools and
money market funds are recorded at fair value, based on the fair value of the position
in the pool,

The District considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Receivables

Amounts due from individuals and organizations are recorded as receivables at year-
end. Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts, At June
30, 2017, the allowance for uncollectible accounts was $6,018. The only receivables
not expected to be collected within one year are current and deiinquent property taxes
receivabie.

Inventory

General Fund inventory includes instructional and other materials held in the central
storeroom. Inventory in the Food Service Fund consists of food and supplies. The
General Fund central storeroom inventory is priced using the weighted average
method. All inventories are accounted for using the consumption method. Under the
consumption method, expenditures are recognized when inventory is used rather than
when purchased. Food and supplies are valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis.

Prepayments

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items are reported using the consumption
method and recorded as expenditure at the time of consumption.

Property Taxes

Property tax ievies are established by the School Board in December of each year and
are certified to the County for collection the following calendar year. In Minnesota,
counties act as collection agents for all property taxes. The County spreads all levies
over taxable property. Such taxes become a fien on January 1. Taxes are due on
May 15 and October 15. The county generally remits taxes to the District at periodic
intervals as they are collected. A portion of property taxes levied is paid through
various state tax credits which are included in revenue from state sources in the
financial statements.

Generally, tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year ending June 39, following the
calendar year in which the tax levy is collectible, while the current calendar year tax
levy is recorded as a deferred inflow of resources (property taxes levied for
subsequent year). The majority of District revenue in the General, Community
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Service Special Revenue Fund, and Debt Service Fund is determined annually by
statutory funding formulas. The total revenue allowed by these formulas is then
ailocated between taxes and state aids by the Legislature based on education funding
pricrities, Changes in this allocation are pericdically accompanied by a change in
property tax revenue recognition referred to as the “tax shift".

Taxes that remain unpaid are classified as delinquent taxes receivable. Revenue from
these delinquent property taxes that is not collected within 80 days of year-end is
deferred because it is not known to be available to finance the operations of the district
in the current year. No allowance for uncollectible taxes has been provided as such
amounts are not expectad to be material,

Restricted Assets

Restricied assets are cash and temporary cash investments whose use is limited by
legal requirements such as a bond indenture. Restricted assets are reported only in the
district-wide financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost for assets
where actual historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital
assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The District
maintains a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. Capital
assets are recorded in the district-wide financial statements, but are not reperted in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method over their estimated usefui lives, ranging from five to fifty years.

Capital assets not being depreciated include tand.
The District does not possess any material amounts of infrastructure capital assets.

ltems such as sidewalks and other land improvements are considered to be part of the
cost of buildings or other improvable property.

. Deferred Qutflows/inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred oufflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
{expenselexpenditure) until then. The District reports deferred outflows of resources
related to pensions for its proportionate shares of collective deferred outflows of
resources related to pensions and District contributions to pension plans subsequent to
the measurement date of collective net pension liability.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) untii that time. The District has reported unavailable revenue from delinquent
property taxes, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, in the
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governmental funds balance sheet. The District has also reported property taxes levied
for subsequent year's expenditures as deferred inflow of resources in both the
governmental funds balance sheet and the statement of net position. The District also
reports deferred inflows of resources for its proportionate share of collective deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions. These amounts are deferred and recognized
as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

. Compensated Absences

The District records a liability for earned but unpaid vacation. Unpaid sick leave does
not vest and therefore is not accrued. Sick pay is recognized when paid and unused
batances are used in severance calculations.

. Pensions

For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related ¢ pensions, and pension expense,
information about fiduciary net position of the Teachers Retirement Association (TRA)
and Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions to/deductions from
TRA and PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as
they are reported by TRA and PERA. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payabie in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

TRA has a special funding situation created by direct aid contributions made by the
State of Minnesota, City of Minneapolis and Minneapolis School District. This direct aid
is a result of the merger of the Minneapolis Retirement Fund Association merger into
TRA in 2008. A second direct aid source is from the State of Minnesota for the merger
of the Duluth Teacher's Retirement Fund Association (DTRFA).

Long-term Liabilities

In the district-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations
are reported as liabilities in the appiicable governmental activities. Bond premiums and
discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest methed. Bond issuance costs are expensed when incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is repcrted as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs are included in
expenditures/expenses when incurred.
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Q. Fund Balances

in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance amounts
within one of the following fund balance categories:

Non-spendable Fund Balances - is either (a) not in spendable form, or {b)
legally contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted Fund Balances — These are amounis that are not available for
appropriation or are legally restricted by ouiside parties for use for a specific
purpose.

Committed Fund Balances — includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposed determined by a formal action of the School Board.

Assigned Fund Batances — include amounts intended to be used for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance represents fund balance that has not been
restricted, commitied, or assigned fo a specific purpose.

The District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for
the purpose which both restricted and unrestricted fund baiance is available.

i resources from more than one fund balance classification could be spent, the
district will strive to spend resources from fund balance classifications in the
following order: restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

[n accordance with the District's fund balance policy, formal board action is required to
establish, modify or rescind a fund baftance commitment and the District's management
is authorized to assign fund balance to a specific purpose.

To ensure financial stability, the beard adopted a fund balance policy that shall
establish and maintain an amount in the general fund unassigned amount, and/or the
severance-insurance restricted amount, equal to ten percent of the combined budgetary
unrastricted expenditures from the general fund, food service fund, community services
fund, capital fund, and debt service fund. The minimum fund balance was not achieved
at June 30, 2017.

R. Net position

Net position represents the difference betwsen assets and deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the district-wide financial
statements. Net position invested in capita! assets consisis of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt
used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position are reported as restricted in the
district-wide financial statements when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws and regulations of
other governments.
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S.

Implementation of New Standards

The District implemented certain applicable sections of GASB Statement No. 82,
Pension Issues-an amendment of GASE Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73. The
statement addresses issues regarding the presentation of payroll-related measures in
required supplementary information. The implementation of GASB Statement No. 82
did not affect the valuation of pensions.

2. Deposits and Investments

A,

Deposits

Minn. Stat. § 118A.04 authorizes the District to deposit its cash and to invest in financial
institutions designated by the District's Board. Minnescta Statutes require that all
District deposits be covered by federal deposit insurance, corporate surety bond, or
collaterai. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the
deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance or corporate surety bonds,
Authorized collateral includes: freasury bills, notes and bonds; issues of U.S.
Government agencies; general cbligations rated "A” or better; revenue obligations rated
“AA" or better; irrevocable standard letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan
Bank; and certificates of deposit. Minnesota Statutes require that securities pledged as
collateral be held in safekeeping in a restricted account at the Federal Reserve Bank or
in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution
that is not owned or controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
financial institution failure, the district’'s deposits may not be returned to it. The District
requires collateral for deposits over FDIC insurance coverage. At June 30, 2017, the
District's deposits were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

investments

Minn, Stat. § 118A.04 and 118A.05 generally authorizes the following types of
investments as available to the District:

1. Securities which are direct obligations or are guaranteed or insured issues of the
United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act
of Congress, except mortgage-backed securities defined as "high risk” by subd. 6;

2. Shares of a Minnesota joint powers investment trust or shares of an investiment
company that is registerad under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1840
pursuant to the restrictions of Minn. Stat § 118A.05 suid. 4;

3. General cbligations of the State of Minnesota and its municipalities, and in certain
state agency and local obligations of Minnesota or other states provided such
obligations have certain specified bond ratings by a national bond rating service;

4. Time deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
or bankers' acceptances of United States banks;

5. Commercial paper issued by United States corporations, or their Canadian
subsidiaries, that is of the highest quality and matures in 270 days or less;
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2, Deposits and investments {Continued)

6. Guaranteed investment contracts (gic's) issued or guaranteed by United States
commerciai banks, or domestic branches of foreign banks, or United States
insurance companies, if similar debt obligations of the issuer or the collateral
pledged by the issuer is in the top two rating categories;

7. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the
Federal Reserve System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary
reporting dealer in U.S. government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers; and

8. Securities lending agents under the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 118A.05 subd.3.

The Minnescta School District Liguid Asset Fund (MSDLAF) and MNTrust are external
investment pools not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC}.
The fair value of the position on the poo! is the same as the value of the pcol shares,
The District's investment in MSDLAF and MN Trust Investment Shares Portfolio are
measured at net asset vaiue per share provided by the poo!, which is based on an
amortized cost method that approximates fair value. MSDLAF and MN Trust are short-
term money market portfolios. The portfolios are managed to maintain a dollar-
weighted average portfolio maturity of ne greater than 60 days and seeks to maintain a
constant net asset value (NAV) per share of $1.00.

interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interest rates
that will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The District does not have a
formal policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure {o
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

The District has the following investments at June 30, 2017

investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 Yr 1-3 Years Over 3 Years
U.8. Government Securiies  $ 132,861,259 $§ 52,891,814 $80,069445 $ -
External Investment Pools 22 518,836 22,518,836

Negotiable CD's 1,678,946 1,678,946 -

Total Investments $ 157,159,041 $ 77,080,596 $80060445 § -

Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an invesiment will not
fulfill its obiigation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment
of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. It is the District's
poiicy to invest only in securities that meet the ratings requirements set by state statute.
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The District's exposure to credit risk as of Juna 30, 2017 is as follows:

S & P or Moody's Rating Fair Value
Aaa 3 44,776,003
AAAM 14,518,836
Not rated 97,864,202

Total Investments 3 167,159,041

Custodial Credit Risk ~ The custodial credit risk for invesiments is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. At June 30, 2017, ncne of the District's investments were subject to
custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk — The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss that
may be caused by the District’s investment in a single issuer. The District places no
limit on the amount the District may invest in one issuer. At June 30, 2017 the District
did not held investments in any one issuer (excluding mutual funds and external
investment pools) that represents five percent or more of the District's investments.

The District categorizes its fair vaiue measurements within the fair val hierarchy
established by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
higrarchy is based cn the vatuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the assets.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 are significant uncbservable inputs.

The District has the following investments valued at recurring fair value measurements
af June 30, 2047

Active Markets Significant Other

of identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inupts Inputs

Investments by fair
value tevel Total {Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Negotiable certificates

of deposit $ 1678948 § 3 1,678,946 &

U.S. Gov Securities 132,961,259 132,961,259

134,840,205 $ $ 134640205 §

Investments measured
at the net asset value
(NAV)

External investment pools 22,518,836
$ 157,158,041
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The following table sets forth additional disciosures about the District's investments
whose values are estimated using net asset value (NAV) as of June 30, 2017:

Redemption
Unfunded Redemption Notice

Amount Commitmenis  Frequency Period
External
investment Pool -
MSDLAF $ 1,827,819 3% - 14 days* 24-hour notice
External
Investment Pool -
MNTrust 20,691,017 - None None

$ 22,518,838
"With the exception of direct investments of funds distributed ty the State of Minnes

The District’s total cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Petty Cash $ 2,805
Deposits 1,499,128
Investments 157,159,041

$ 158,660,774

The District’s total cash and investments as of June 30, 2017 are presented in the basic
financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position

Cash and temporary investments $ 23,980,513
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments for debt senice 132,961,361
Cash and investments for capital projects 187

Statement of Fiduciary Net Posifion
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Federal Employee Benefit Trust Fund 1,567,675
Private Purpose Funds 151,038
Total Cash and Investments $ 158,660,774
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3. Taxes and Credits Receivable

Current taxes and credits receivable represent the uncoliected batance of the 2016
tevy, collectible in 2017, including related state property tax relief aid. Delinquent taxes
receivable represent taxes due from levies of the prior six years. At June 30, 2017,
property taxes and credits receivable consisted of:

Fund Current Delinquent Total
General Fund $ 7.430,723 % 685578 $ 8,126,301
Community Sendces Fund 527,338 70,507 597,845
Debt Senice Fund 9.504,124 1,040,408 10,544 532
Total $ 17,462,185 § 1,808,493 § 19,288,678

4. Ipventory

Inventory at June 30, 2017, consisted of:

Gerneral Fund - Supplies $ 65,202
Food Service Fund - Food 123,829
Total $ 189,031

5. Lease Obligations

Operating Leases

The District is committed under various operating leases for building space, parking
faciiities, and equipment.  Rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, was
$503,308.

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases, which are not reflected in
these financial statements, consist of the following at June 30, 2017;

Year Ending June 30

2018 $ 398,028
2019 267,945
2026 143,907
2021 20,542
Total $ 830,422
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Capital Assets

A summary of the changes in capital assets is as follows:

Capital Assets Not Balance Balance
Depreciated 6/30/2016 Additions Disposals 6/30/2017
Landg $ 11,892,735 % 1,203.00 $ (1,672,528) $ 10,021,410

Total Capital Asseis

Not Depreciated $ 11692735 § 1,203.00 $ (1,672,528 % 10,621,410
Capital Assets

Depreciated

Land Improvements $ 2,595,576 % - 3 {99,218) § 2,496,358
Buildings 334,100,561 1,124,188 (45,329) 335,178,420
Equipment 8,133,622 451,631 {1,220,593) 7,364 660
Total Capital Assets

Depreciated $ 344,820759 $ 1,575,819 $ (1,366,140) $ 345,039,438
l.ess Accumuiated

Deprecation (54,850,918} (7,239,696} 1,183,465 (60,807,147)
Capital assets,
net $ 289,978,843 § (5663,877) $ (182,675) $ 284,132,291
Totai capital assts,

net of depreciation  § 301,671,578 % (5,662,674) § (1,855,203) § 294 153,701

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

2017

Program Code Depreciation
Adrministration $ 9,552
District Support Service 118,973
Elem/Sec Regular Instruction 33,417
Vocational Education instruction 24,018
Special Education Instruction 4,758
Community Education and Service 33118
Instructional Support Services 650
Pupil Support Services 176,327
Sites and Buildings 6,835,888

Total 7239588

Included in amounts reported for capital assets are land, buildings, and equipment
related to closure hearings conducted by the School Board. The closure hearings
inciuded Centrai High School, Secondary Technical Center, Morgan Park Middle
School and Rockridge Elementary. Morgan Park Middie School was soid in July, 2015.
Rockridge Elementary wili be used as an educational facility again beginning in Fiscal
Year 2018. The net book value of the remaining assets total $5,109,420.
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7. Long-Term Liabilities

Certificates of Participation

$111,440,000 Full Term Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 20088
due in annual installments of $2,440,000 to $10,385,000 plus 3.50 to 5.00
percent interest from February 1, 2009 through February 1, 2028. $ 82,225,000

$71,170,000 Taxable Full Term Certificates of Participation, Series 2D09A

(Build America Bonds - Direct Pay) due in annual installments of $2,675,000

to $6,265,000 pius 2.250 to 5.600 percent interest from February 1, 2010

through February 1, 2028, 53,010,000

$35,400,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 20088 due in
annual instailments of $1,300,000 to $2,770,000 plus 4.00 to 5.00 percent
interest from March 1, 2012 through March 1, 2030 27,075,000

$5,000,000 Full Term Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2010C
due in annual installments of $210,000 to $370,000 plus 2.00 to 4.00
percent interest from August 1, 2011 through February 1, 2028. 3,490,000

$1,605,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 2010D due in annual
installments of $90,000 to $110,000 plus 2.50 to 4.65 percent interest
from March 1, 2011 through March 1, 2030, 1,125,000

$12,800,424.50 Full Term Capital Appreciation Certificates of Participation,
Series 2012A due in annual installments of $536,344 to $2,304,404 plus 3.70
to 4.25 percent interest from February 1, 2021 through February 1, 2028. 12,800,425

$6,340,000 Certificates of Participation, Series 20128 due in annual

installments of $260,000 to $460,000 plus 3.00 to 5.25 percent interest

from March 1, 2013 through March 1, 2032. 5,275,000
$82,605,000 Fult Term Refunding Certificates of Participation, Series 2016A

due in annuat installments of $4,470,000 to $9,900,000 plus 3.00 fo 5.00 percent

interest from February 1, 2017 through February 1, 2028. 78,135,000

Tota $263,135,425
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The annual requirements to amortize the principal and interest are:

Year Ended
June 30 Total Principal Interest

2018 $ 26,972,030 & 15,705,000 3 11,267,030
2019 27,392,480 18,720,000 10,672,480
2020 24,561,893 17,795,000 6,766,893
2021 25,994 422 19,471,344 6,523,078
2022 27,795,285 21,403,895 5,391,380

2023-2027 157,069,555 132,515,781 24,553,774

2028-2032 43,565,282 39,524,405 4,040,877
Total $ 333,350,947 $ 263135425 3 70,215,522

On August 17, 2016, the District issued $82,605,000 in Full Term Refunding Certificates
of Participation, Series 2016A, to refund the Full Term Certificates of Participation,
Series 2008B. The proceeds were placed in escrow and invested in U. S. government
securities. The proceeds plus interest earned will be sufficient to pay the 2017 through
2028 payments of the Full Term Certificates of Participation, Series 2008B callable on
February 1, 2019. The refunding was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments
in an average amount annually of $571,686 over twelve years.

Bonds Payabie

$56,235,000 General Obligation Alternative Facilities Bonds (Series 2008A)

due in annual installments of $580,000 to $5,200,000 plus 3.500 to 4.625

percent interest from February 1, 2009 through February 1, 2028 $ 486 680,000
$44,320,000 General Obligation Schoot Building Refunding Bonds

(Series 2015B) due in annual instaliments of $525,000 to $5,135,000 plus
3.50 to 4.00 percent interest from August 1, 2015 to February 1, 2028. 43,765,000

Total $ 90,445,000
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The annuat requirements to amortize the principal and interest are:

Year Ended
June 30 Total Principal Interest
2018 3 50,432,425 3 46,715,000 $ 3,717,425
2019 5,302,200 3,605,000 1,697,200
2020 5,288,000 3,735,000 1,653,000
2021 5,283,800 3,880,000 1,403,800
2022 5,284,600 4,075,000 1,209,600
2023-2027 26,439,700 23,300,000 3,139,700
2028 5,289,080 5,135,000 154,050
Total $ 103,319675 3 50,445,000 $ 12,874,575
Changes in iong-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2017 are:
Balance Payments/ Balance
June 30, 2018 " Increase Adjustments June 30, 3017
Certificates of
participation $195,215425  § 82,605,000 $ 14,685,000 $263,135425
Bonds payable 93,785,000 3,340,000 90,445,000
OPEB 3,458,553 2,259,748 1,607,624 4,210,675
Severance
obligation 24,897,997 2,888,496 2,983,052 24,803,441
Net pension '
liability 58,075,035 174,422,869 4,754,964 227,742,940
Total $ 375,432,010 $262,176,111 $ 27,270,640 $610,337,481
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Certificates of Participation and bonds are paid from the General and Debt Service
Funds. OPEB, severance obligations, and net pension Hability are paid from the
General, Food Service, Community Service, or the Federal Employee Benefit Trust
funds.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) created build America
bonds and recovery zone economic development bonds. As a result of this act, the
District receives direct payments from the Federal Government equal to 35 percent of
the interest payments due on bond Series 2009A. During the year the District received
an interest subsidy from the Federal Government totaling $932,075,

The following is a summary of the current (due in one year or less) and the long-term
portion {due in more than one year} of long-term debt as of June 30, 2017.

Current Long-term
Portion Portion Total
Certificates of participation $15705,000 §$247.430425 § 263135425
Bonds payable 3,470,000 86,875,000 90,445,000
OPEB 4,210,675 4,210,675
Severance obligation 1,334,926 23,488,515 24,803,441
Net pension liability 227,742,940 227,742,940
Total $20,500,926 §589,827555 $610,337,481

Legal Debt Margin

The District's legal debt limit is 15% of the fair market value of the property within the
District. ~ The District's legal debt margin at June 30, 2017 is approximately
$922 942,365

8. Compensated Absences

Vacation and sick leave are earned based on varicus bargaining unit contracts and
length of service as follows:

Vacation Sick Leave
Teachers None 10 days per year
Administrative 10 - 25 days per year 10 - 13 days per year
Maintenance 2 - 5 weeks per year 18 days per year
Non-certified 0 - 6 weeks per year 13 - 18 days per year

At June 30, 2017, $447,090 has been inciuded in the district-wide financial statements.

Page 52



INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2017

9. Severance Obligations

Upon retirement, most District employees are entitled to a severance amount based on
accumulated unused sick leave, age, years of service and wage rate at date of
retirement, as established by contracts with bargaining units or other empioyment
contracts. These contracts establish the terms and amounts each retiree is eligible to
receive, and establish when these severance benefits vest, ali of which may differ
between each bargaining unit and employee group.

For some bargaining units, the District remits either a lump sum or one third of the
calcuiated severance benefit to the Minnesota State Retirement System MHealth Care
Savings Plan (HCSP) upcn retirement of the employee. The remaining two thirds of the
calcuiated amount due the empioyee are paid over a two year period. These funds will
be disbursed in accordance with the HCSP account agreement, which is & separate
agreement between the HCSP and the retiree. For the remaining employees, the
District pays a portion of the severance benefit to the state HCSP and retains a portion
for the employees to use to pay future health insurance premiums. Severance is
recorded as an expendiiure when paid. The retained severance obligation for this
beneitt is for future health insurance benefits and amounis due to the state HCSP,

During 2017, 124 retirees received a total benefit of $2,983.052. The District funds
these expenditures as paid except for the severance for employees of federal
programs, which is funded through the Federal Employee Benefit Trust.

Retained severance benefit obiigations for retirees $ 883,902

Retained severance benefit obligations for qualified employees 25,771,604
Totat termination benefits payable $ 26,655,506

Amount available in Federal Employee Benefit Trust Fund (1,852,065}
Total $ 24,803,441

10. Interfund Transactions

Individual fund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2017:

Receivable Payabie
General Fund 3 “ $ 187,716
Community Senice Fund 96 433

Fiduciary Funds
Federal Employee Benefit Trust Fund $ 284,149

Total Funds $ 284,149 $ 284,149

These amounts represent federal severance calculation and are expected to be paid
within one year.
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11. Fund Balance

Certain portions of fund balance are restricted based on state requirements to track
special program funding, to provide for funding on certain long-term liabilities, or as
reguired by other outside parties.

Restricted fund balances at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

A

B

Restricted for Teacher Development & Evaluations ~ This represents amounts
available for development and evaluations for teachers and principals.

Restricted for Projects funded by Certificates of Participation (COP) — Represents
unspent COP bond issue proceeds available for construction projects identified in
the District's Long-Range Facility Plan.

Restricted for Area Learning Center — Represents available resources for students
aftending the Area Learning Center. Revenue is derived by state aid and
expenditures are for salaries, benefits, and supplies.

Restricted for Debt Service — This amount represents available resources for the
payment of long-term debt, Revenues are derived from local tax levies, state aids,
and federal sources and expenditures are for principal and interest costs.

Restricted for Food Service - This amount represents available resources for food
service programs. Revenues are derived from local, state, and federat sources and
expenditures are for salaries, benefits and suppiies.

Restricted for Community Education — This amount represents available resources
for community education classes. Revenues are derived from iocal tax levies and
state aids and expenditures are for salaries, benefits and suppiies.

Restricted for Early Childhood and Family Education (ECFE) -~ This amount
represents available resources for ECFE classes. Revenues are derived from local
tax levies and state aids and expenditures are for salaries, benefits and supplies.
Restricted for School Readiness — This amount represents available resources to
provide services for learning readiness programs.

Restricted for Adult Basic Education — This amount represents the balance of
carryover monies for all activity involving Adult Basic Education

Restricted for Community Service - This amount represents available resources to
provide services for community service.

Restricted for Long-Term Facilities Maintenance (LTFM) — This amount represents
available resources to be used for LTFM projects in accordance with the 10 Year
Plan.

Restricted for Bond Refunding — This amount represents amounts held in escrow
on Refunding Bond Series 20158 and 2016A. The amounts in escrow are used for
future payments of principal and interest on Bong Series 2008A and 20088 until
their respective bond cailable dates.
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11. Fund Balance {continued)

Below is a detail description of the restricted fund balance amount reported on the
Government's Balance Sheet on Jjune 30, 2017.

Teacher Development & Evai $ 100,800
LTFM 179,282
Projects funded by CQOP 187
Area learning Center 188,791
Debt senice 138,597,855
Food Sendce 776,703
Community Education 773,759
Early childhood famility education 195,894
Schooi readiness 280,080
Adult basic education 24 659
Community senice 30,005

Total Restricted Fund Balance $ 141,127,995

12. Post-Employment Healthcare Plan

The cost of post-employment benefits, ke the cost of pension benefits, generally
should be associated with the periods in which the cost occurs rather than in the future
year when it will be paid. In adopting the requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, the
District recognizes the costs of post-employment healthcare in the year when the
employee services are received, reports the accumulated liability from prior years, and
provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the District’s future cash
flows. The plan does not issue a standalone financial report, but is included in this
report of the District.

Plan Description ~ Duluth Public Schools administers a single-employer defined benefit
OPEB pian which allows retired employees to remain on the District's plan after
severing from the District (implicit rate subsidy) af the retirees’ expense. The District
has no contractuai iiability to contribute financially toward the retiree’s premium.

Funding ~ Employer contribution requirements are established and may be amended as
set forth in the applicable employment and bargaining unit agreements. The plan is
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of July 1, 2015 the date of the latest actuarial
valuation, approximately 823 retirees and their dependents were receiving
postemployment heaith insurance benefits and an estimated 1,213 active employees
are eligible to receive future benefits under the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OFEB Obligation — Duluth Public School's annual other
post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calcuiated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a leve! of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not ‘o
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of Duluth Public
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12. Post-Employment Healthcare Plan {continued)

Schools' annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan,
and changes in Duluth Public Schools’ net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2017:

Annual Required Contribution (ARCYAnnual OPEB Cost

Annual Regufred Contribution (ARC) $ 2,324,032
Interest on net OPER obiigation 129,606
Adjustment to ARC (193,882)
Annual OPEB Cost $ 2,258,746
Empioyer contributions
Implicit subsidy benefits 623,722
Direct subsidy benefits 883,802
Increase in Net OFPEB Obligation $ 752,122
Net CPEB obligation, June 30, 2016 3,458,553
Net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2017 $ 4,210,675
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Estimated % of Annual
Fiscal Year Annuat Employer OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Contribution Obligation
June 30,2015 § 798,700 % 622,287 77.9% $ 3,889,196
June 30,2016 2,296,454 2,727,097 118.8% 3,458,553
June 30,2017 2,259,748 1,507,624 686.7% 4,210,675

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of July 1, 2015, the maost recent actuarial
valuation date, the pian was 100 percent unfunded. The actuarial accrued liability and
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) for benefits was $20,857 680. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$61,089,875, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 34.1 percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortaiity, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and
the annuai required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multivear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits,
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12. Post-Employment Healthcare Plan (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the pian as understood by the employer
and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
technigues that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations,

In the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included a discount rate of 3.75 percent, inflation
rate of 2.76 percent, and health care trend rates ranging from 7.2 percent initially,
reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0 percent after seven years. The UAAL
is being amortized as a level dollar amount over thirty years,

13. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The District participates in the following cost-sharing multipie-employer defined benefit
pension plans adminisiered by Teachars’ Retirement Association of Minnesota (TRA)
and Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA). TRA and PERA's defined
benefit pension plans are established and administered in accordance with Minnesota
Statutes. TRA and PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under
Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

A. Teachers’ Retirement Association of Minnesota

1. Plan Description

Certified employees of the District are covered by defined benefit plans
administered by the TRA. TRA administers a Basic Plan (without Social
Security coverage) and a Coordinated Plan {with Social Security coverage) in
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 354 and 356. TRA is a
separate statutory entity and administered by a Board of Trustees. The Board
consists of four active members, one retired member and three statutory
officials.

Teachers employed in Minnesota’s public elementary and secondary school,
charter schools, and certain educational institutions maintained by the state
(except those teachers employed by the cities of Duluth and St. Paul, and by
the University of Minnesota system) are required to be TRA members. State
university, community coflege, and technical college teachers first employed by
the Minnescta Siate College and Universities (MnSCU} may elect TRA
coverage within one year of eligible emptoyment.  Alternatively, these teachers
may elect coverage through the Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (DCR)
administered by MhSCU.
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13. Defined Benefit Pension Plans {Continued)

2.

Benefits Provided

TRA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and
benefits to survivors upon death of eligible members. Benefits are established
by Minnesota Statute and vest after three years of service credit. The defined
retirement benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for any
five consecutive years of allowable service, age, and a formula multiplier based
on years of credit at termination of service.

Two methods are used to compute benefits for TRA's Coordinated and Basic
Plan members. Members first employed before July 1, 1989, receive the
greater of the Tier | or Tier Il benefits as described.

Tier | Benefits Step Rate Formula Percentage
Basic First ten years of service 2.2% per year
All years after 2.7% per year

Coordinated  First ten years if years up to 7/1/2006  1.2% per year
First ten years if years 7/1/2006 or after 1.4% per year
All other years if years up to 7/1/20068  1.7% per year
All other years if years 7/1/2006 or after 1.9% per year

Under Tier | benefits, normal retirement age is 65 with less than 30 years of
allowable service and age 62 with 30 or more years of allowable service; 3
percent per year early retirement reduction factor for all years under normal
retirement age; and unreduced benefits for early retirement under a Rule-of-80
(age plus allowable service equals 90 or more).

OR
Tier Il Benefits

For years of service prior {o July 1, 2008, a level formula of 1.7 percent per year
for coordinated members and 2.7 percent per year for basic members is
applied. For vears of service July 1, 2006 and after, a level formufa of 1.9
percent per year for Coordinated members and 2.7 for Basic members applies.
Beginning July 1, 2015, the early retirement reduction factors are based on
rates established under Minnesota Statute. Smaller reductions, more favorable
to the member, will be applied to individuals who reach age 62 and have 30
years or more of service credit,

Members first employed after June 30, 1889, receive only the Tier [l calculation
with a normal retirement age that is thekr retirement age for full Social Security
refirement benefits, but not to exceed age 66,

Six different types of annuities are available to members upon retirement. The
No Refund Life Pian is a lifetime annuity that ceases upon the death of the
refiree — no survivor annuity is payable. A retiring member may also choose to
provide survivor benefits to a designated beneficiary(ies) by selecting one of
the five plans that have survivorship features. Vested members may also leave
their contributions in the TRA Fund upon termination of service in order to
qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement age. Any member terminating
service is eligible for a refund of their employee contributions plus interest.
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The benefit provisions stated apply to active plan participants. Vested,
terminated empioyees who are entitied to benefits but not yet receiving them
are bound by the plan provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their
public service.

3. Contribution Rate

Per Minnesocta Statutes, Chapter 354 sets the contribution rates for employees
and employers. Rates for each fiscal years ended June 38, 2015, June 30,
2016, and June 30, 2017, were;

Basic:

Employee: 11.0%
Employer: 11.5%
Coordinated:
Employee: 7.5%
Employer: 7.5%

The foliowing is a reconciliation of the employer contributions in TRA's CAFR
“‘Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position” to the employer contributions
used in Schedule of Employer and Non-Employer Pension Allocations.

Employer contributions reported in TRA's CAFR, $ 354,961,140
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Add employer contributions not related to future 26,356
contribution efforts

Deduct TRA's contributions not included in allocation (442,978)
Total employer contributions $ 354 544,518
Total non-employer contributions 35,587,410
Total contributions reported in Schedule of Employer $ 390,131,928

and Non-Employer Allocations

Amounts reported in the allocation schedules may not precisely agree with
financial statement amounts or actuariai vaiuations due to the number of
decimal places used in the allocations. TRA has rounded percentage amounts
to the nearest ten thousandths.
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13. Defined Benefit Pension Plans {Continued)

4.

Actuarial Assumptions

The totai pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 20186, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods

inciuded in the measurement,

Key Methods and Assumptions Used in Valuation of Total Pension Liability

Actuarial Information:

Valuation Date
Experience Study
Actuarial Cost Method
Investment Rate of Return

Price inflation rate

Wage growth rate
Projected salary increase
Cost of living adjustment
Mortality Assumption:

Pre-retirement

Post-retirement

Post-disability

July 1, 2016

June 5, 2015

Entry Age Normal

4.66%, from the Single Equivalent Interest
Rate calculation

2.75%

3.5%

3.5% - 9.5%

2.0%

RP-2014 white collar employee fable, male
rates set back six years and female rates set
back five years. Generational projection uses
the MP-2015 scale.

RP-2014 white collar annuitant table, male
rates set back three years and female rates set
back three years, with further adiustments of
the rates. Generational projection uses the
MP-2015 scale.

RP-2014 disabled retiree mortality table,
without adjustment.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension pian investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the fong-term expected rate of return
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of refurn for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Target Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return

Domestic Stocks 45% 5.50%
international Stocks 15% 6.00%
Bonds 18% 1.45%
Alternative Assets 20% 6.40%
Unallocated Cash 2% G.50%
Total ' 100%

e —

The TRA actuary has determined the average of the expected remaining
service lives of all members for fiscal year 2016 is 6 years. The “Difference
Between Expected and Actual Experience,” “Changes of Assumptions,” and
“Changes in Proportion” use the amortization period of 6 years in the schedule
presented. The amortization period for “Net Difference Between Projected and
Actual Investment Earnings on Pansion Plan investments” is over a period of 5
years as required by GASB 68,

5, Riscount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.66%. This is
a decrease from the discount rate at the prior measurement date of 8.00%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
employee contributions will be made at the fiscal 2017 contribution rate,
contributions from school districts will be made at contractually required rates
(actuarially determined), and contributions from the state will be made at
current statutorily required rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be depleted in 2052 and, as a
resuit, the Municipal Bond index Rate was used in the determination of the
Single Equivalent Interest Rate {SEIR). The long-ferm expected rate of return
was applied to ail periods on and after 2052, resulting in a SEIR of 4.66
percent. Based on Fiduciary Net Position at prior year measurement date, the
discount rate of 8.C0 percent was used and it was not necessary to calculate
the SEIR.
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6. Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liabiiity of $207,062,583 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The District's proportion of the net pension Hability was based on the
District’s contributions to TRA in refation to total system contributions including
direct aid from the State of Minnesota, City of Minneapolis and Minneapolis
School District. The District's proportionate share was §.8681% at the end of
the measurement pericd and 0.7225% for the beginning of the year.

The pension liability amount reflected a reduction due to direct aid provided to
TRA. The amount recognized by the District as its proporticnate share of the
net pension liability, the direct aid, and total portion of the net pension liability
that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportional share of net pension liability $ 207,062,563

State's proportional share of net pension liability
associated with the District $ 20,782,926

There was & change in actuarial assumptions that affected the measurement of
the total fiability since the prior measurement date. Post-retirement benefit
adjustments are now assumed to be 2.0 percent annually. While in previous
measurement the COLA increased to 2.5 percent in 2034.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of
$32,184,044. It also recognized $2,901,992 as an increase fo pension expense
for the support provided by direct aid.

At June 30, 2017, the District had deferred resources related to pensions from
the following sources:
Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual economic experience $ 27,683 $
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 14,575,862
Changes in assumptions 117,528,953
Contributions paid to TRA subsequent
to the measurement period 3,582,555
Changes in proportion 28,226,134
Total $ 163,941,187 $
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$3,582,555 reported as a deferred outflow resources related to pensions
resuiting from the District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
Juneg 30, 2018.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be recognized in pension
expense as follows:

Pension Expense

Year Ended June 30 Amount
2018 $ 38,027,013
2019 $ 36,027,013
2020 $ 36,027,012
2021 $ 27,813,700
2022 $ 24,463,894
Total $ 160,358,632

7. Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension
liabifity calculated using the discount rate of 4.66%, as well as the iiability
measured using a discount rate 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point
higher than the current discount rate;

1% Decrease in 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
Discount Rate 3.66% 4.68% 5.66%
District's
proportionate share
of the TRA net
pension liability $ 266,748,336 $207,082,563 $ 158,450,447

The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the employer
contributions to TRA in refation to TRA's total employer contributions including
direct aid contributions from the State of Minnesota, City of Minneapoiis, and
Minneapolis School District.

8. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about TRA's fiduciary net position is available in a
separately-issued TRA financial report. That report can be obtained at
www. MinnesotaTRA org, or by writing to Teachers Retirement Association of
Minnesota, 60 Empire Drive, Suite 400, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55103, or by
calling 651-296-2409 or 800-657-3669.
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B. Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)

1.

Plan Description

The District participates in the following cost-sharing multipie-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement
Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are
established and administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters
353 and 356. PERA's defined benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans
under Section 401 (a} of the Internal Revenue Code.

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the District other than teachers
are covered by the General Employees Plan {(accounted for in the General
Employees Retirement Fund). General Employees Plan members belong to
either the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social
Security.

Benefits Provided

PERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are
established by state statute, and can only be modified by the state legislature.

Benefit increases are provided fo benefit recipients each January. Increases
are related to the funding ratio of the pian. Members in plans that are at least
90% funded for two consecutive years are given 2.5% increases. Members in
plans that have not exceeded 90% funded, or have fallen below 80%, are given
1% increases,

The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraph are current provisions
and apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are
entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in
effect at the time they last terminated their public service.

Benefits are based on a members highest average salary for any five
successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of
services. Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s Coordinated
and Basic Plan members. The retiring member receives the higher of a step-
rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level accrual formula (Method 2).
Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.2% of
average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 2.7% for each
remaining year. The annuity accrual for a Coordinated Plan member is 1.2% of
average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.7% for each remaining year,
Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.7% of average salary for Basic
Plan members and 1.7% for Coordinated Plan members for each year of
service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available
when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 85. For
members hired on or after July 1, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for
unreduced Saocial Security benefits capped at 66.
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3. Contributions

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and empioyee
contributions. Contribution rates can only be modified by the state legislature.

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.5% of their annuat
covered salary in fiscal year 2017. The District was required to contribute 7.5%
for Coordinated Plan members. The District's contributions to the General
Employees Fundg for the year ended June 30, 2017 were $1,248,355. The
District’s contribution was equal to the contractually required contribution for the
year as set by state statute.

4. Pension Costs

At June 30, 2017, the District reported a liability of $20,680,377 for its
proportionate share of General Employees Fund's net pension liability. The
District's net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of
Minnesota's contribution of $6 million to the fund in 2016. The State of
Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity and the state's
contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The State of
Minnesota’s proporticnate share of the net pension liability associated with the
District totaied $270,170. The net pension liabiiity was measured as of June
30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability
wag determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's
proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's contributions
received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid
dates from July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016, refative to the total employer
centributicns received from all of PERA’s participating employers. At June 30,
2016, the District's proportion was 0.2547%, which was a decrease of 0.0035%
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015,

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of

$2,821,026 for its proportionate share of General Employees Plan’s pension
expense.
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At June 30, 2017, the District reported its proportionate share of the Generai
Employees Plan's deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the foliowing sources:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and
actual economic experience 3 $ 1,820,732
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments 2,212,543
Changes in assumptions 4,488,013
Contributions paid to PERA subsequent
to the measurement period 1,248,355
Changes in proportion 457,820
Total $ 7,948,911 3 2,078,552

$1,248,355 reported as a deferred outflow resources related to pensions
resulting from the District's contributions subsequent to the measurement date
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2018,

Other amounts reported as deferred outfiows and inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Pension Expense

Year Ended June 30 Amount
2018 $ 1,211,560
2019 707,442
2020 1,955,002
2021 747,010
2022 -
Total 3 4,622,004
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13. Defined Benefit Pension Plans {Continued)

5. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabiiity in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation was
determined using the actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.50% per year
Active Member Payroll Growth  3.25% per year
Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for
active members, retiree, survivors and disabilitants were based on RP-2014
tables for males or females, as appropriate, with slight adjustments.

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the
results of actuarial experience studies. The most recent four-year experience
study in the General Employees Plan was completed in 2015,

The following three changes in actuarial assumpticns occurred in 2016:

{1} The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0%
per year through 2035 and 2.5% per year thereafter to 1.0% per year for all
future years.

(2) The assumed investmeni return was changed from 7.8% 0 7.5%. The
single discount rate was changed from 7.9% to 7.5%.

{3} Cther assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study dated
June 30, 2015. The assumed future saiary increases, payroll growth, and
inflation were decreased by 0.25% to 3.25% for payroil growth and 2.50%
for inflation.

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA,
prepares an analysis of the reascnableness on a regular basis of the long-term
expected rate of return using a building-block method in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined o produce an expected long-term rate of
return by weighting the expected future rates of return by the target asset
atlocation percentages. The target affocation and best estimates of geometric
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following

table:
Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Target Aliocation Real Rate of Retumn
Bomestic Stocks 45% 5.50%
International Stocks 15% 6.00%
Bonds 18% 1.45%
Altermnative Assels 20% £.40%
Cash 2% 0.50%
Totai 100%
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13. Defined Benefit Pension Plans {(Continued}

6.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2016 was
7.50%, a reduction from the 7.9% used in 2015. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members and employers will be made at rates set in Minnesota Statutes.
Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net position of the General
Employees Fund was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current pian members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of relurn on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Pension Liability Sensitivity

The foifowing presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability for all plans it participates in, calculated using the discount rate
disciosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher
than the current discount rate;

1% Decrease in  Deferred inflows 1% Increase in
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

Discount Rate 6.50% 7.80% 8.50%
District's

proportionaie share

of the PERA net

pension liability $ 29,372,264 $ 20,680,377 $ 13,520,627

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information abcut General Employees Fund fiduciary net position is
available in a separately-issued PERA financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That repert may be
obtained on the internet at www.mnpera.org.
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14. Dentai Self-Insurance Plan

The District established an Internat Service Fund to account for and finance its
uninsured risk of ioss for empioyee dental insurance plans. tUnder these plans, the
internat  Service Fund provides coverage to participating employees and their
dependents for various dental costs as described in the plan,

The District makes premium payments to the Internal Services Fund on behalf of the
program participants based on provisional rates determined by insurance company
estimates of monthly claims paid for each coverage ciass, plus the stop-ioss heaith
insurance premium costs and administrative service charges.

District claim liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for
claims that have been incurred, but not reported. Because actual claim liabilities
depend on complex factors such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage
awards, the process used in computing a claim liability does not necessarily result in an
exact amount.  Claim liabilities are evaluated periodically to take into consideration
recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors.

Changes in the balance of dental claim liabilities for the year were as follows:

Beginning of Claims and Balance af

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Changes in Claims Fiscal Year
Ended June 30 Liability Estimates Payments End

2016 $ 75903 § 773,376 $772,732 & 76,547

2017 76,547 816,625 790,297 102,875

15. Risk Management

16.

The District is exposed to various risks of loss refated to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and cmissions; injuries o employee health and dental and
natural disasters. Risks of loss related to empioyee dental claims are self-insured. Risk of
loss associated with workers' compensation claims were insured through participation in the
Minnesota School Boards Association Insurance Trust and continue to cover claims arising
during their period of coverage. The District currently carries commercial workers'
compensation insurance. This policy provides coverage for up to a maximum Hability limit
of $2,000,000 with a medical deductible of $2,500 for each workers’ compensation claim.
All other risks of loss are insured by the purchase of commerciat insurance. There wera no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year. There were no
setilements in excess of insurance for any of the past three fiscal years.

The Minnesota School Boards Association Insurance Trust is a public entity risk pool
currently operated as a common risk management and insurance program for member
school districts. The District pays an annual premium based on annual payroll rates and an
experience modification factor for workers’ compensation coverage contracts totaiing
$70,081. The construction commitments will be paid by the General Fund.

Commitments

At June 30, 2017, the District had commitments under various construction and service
contracts totaling $70,081. The construction commitments will be paid by the General
Fund.
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17. Contingent Liabilities

18.

Amaunts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disaflowed claims, including
amounts already coilected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if
any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be deiermined at this
time, although the District expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The District is a defendant in various {awsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is
not presently determinable, in the opinion of the District's counsel the resofution of these
matiers will not have a material adverse effect on the financiai conditions of the District.

Future Accounting Standards

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued several statements not
yet implemented by the District. Listed below are the statements which may impact future
financial statements of the District.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions, will be effective for the District for the year ended June 30, 2018.
This statement establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of rescurces and expense/expenditures, and
identifies the methods and assumptions that are required ot be used fo project benefit
payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present vaiue, and
attribute that present value to periods of employee service. The District has not completed
the process of evaluating GASB Staternent No. 75, but implementation is expected to
impact the District's recognition of OPEB iiabilities and expense/expenditures.

GASB Statement No. 83, Cerfain Asse! Retirement Obligations, will be effective for the
District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2019. This statement addresses accounting
and financial reporting for liabilities associated with the legal obligation to perform future
asset retirement activities.

GASB Siatement No. 84, Fiduciary Acfivities, wilt be effective for the District beginning with
its year ending June 30, 2020. This statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary
activities and clarifies whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary
activities.

GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, will be effective for the
District beginning with its year ending June 30, 2018. This statement provides guidance on
accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt,

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, will be effective for the. District beginning with its year
ending June 30, 2021. This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating Jeases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract.
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19. Subsequent Event

Bond Issues

On October 30, 2017, the District issued $3,640,000 in Taxable General Obligation
Facilities Maintenance Bonds {Series 2017A) and $615,000 in Taxable General Obligation
Capital Facilities Bonds (Series 20178). The proceeds of the Series 2017A Bonds will be
used fo renovate the Rockridge building and replace the Lakewood Elementary School roof.
The proceeds of the Series 2017B Bonds will be used to repair and renovate the Rockridge
building. The bonds wiil be repaid over the next five years, ending February 1, 2022.
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA
Statement A- 1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GENERAL FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2017
With Comparative Actuat Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Over
Budgset {Under) Prior Year
Originat Final Actugl Final Budget Actual
Revenues
lLocal property tax levies $ 128618535 § 12616535 $ 12459353 % (167,182) § 10,364,262
interest income 41,678 41,678 108,910 67,232 46,758
Qther local and county 3,355,913 3,608,370 4,085,377 478,007 4,135,457
State sources 80,946,083 81,916,107 78,037,330 (3.878,777) 78,961,138
Federal sources 6,006,087 8,501,226 5,524,445 23,219 6,293,531
Insurance/Judgement recovery 69,383 84,785 15,402 3,385
Sales and other conversions of assets 648 583 648 583 857,415 8832 772,435
Total Revenues § 103618879 § 105399882 §$ 101,957615 § (3.442.267) $ 100,576,946
Expenditures
Administration $ 5572277 $ 5173473 § 5000808 $ 163,887 §$ 5,178,207
District support services 4,261,885 4,270,346 2,800 224 1,470,122 3,742,130
Regular instruction 41,077,690 43,192,893 45,613,382 {2,420,489) 43,642,035
Vocationat instruction 1,609,471 1,625,421 1,420,996 204,425 1,270,918
Special education instruction 21,568 392 21,606,879 23,214 740 (1,607,861} 22,447 130
Community education and services - 158,080 89,191 68,889 -
Instructionaf support services 3,771,551 4,447,102 5,279,209 (832,107) 5,609,860
Pupil support services 8,368,199 8,427,341 7,887,262 540,079 7,548,385
Sites, buildings and equipment 4,950,263 8,301,471 8,131,440 176,031 7,548,440
Fiscal and other fixed cost programs 3,980,000 3,980,000 330,174 3,648,826 340,448
Debt Sarvice
Principal 1,830,000 1,830,000 1,830,000 - 1,780,000
interest 1,540,935 1,540,835 1,540,935 - 1,608,785
Capital outiay 5,088,215 2,997 661 1,796,587 1,200,674 757 674
Total Expenditures $ 103618879 § 107551802 $ 104,943,846 $ 2607756 $ 1014738142
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Qver
Expenditures $ - § (21817200 & (2986,231) 3 (8345110 § {896,866)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of property $ - $ 1,001 § 1001 % - $ 298,462
Total Other Financing Sources {Uses) $ - 3 1,001 % 1000 § - 3 208,462
Net change in fund balance $ - $  (2,150,718) $ (2,985230% § {834511) % {598,404)
Fund Balance
Beginning of Year §  3,096648 $ 3,685,052
End of Year $ 111,418 3 3,008,648
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Statement A- 2

Funded Status

(a) (b) (c) (d)=(c)-(b)  (e}=(b)/(c) (f) (@)=(d)/(f)

Unfunded UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Estimated Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liabiiity Liability Ratio Payrol Payroll
July 1,2011 § $ 6574768 $ 6574768 0% $ 458,802,003 14.0%
July 1, 2013 8,236,516 8,236,516 0% 53,495,962 15.4%
July 1, 2015 24,857,660 20,857,660 0% 61,089,875 34.1%

The District's unfunded actuarial accrued Hability (UAAL) changed from $8,236,516 to $20,857,660.
The main reason for this large liability increase is due to an internal change in allocation of liabilities
between GASB 46 and GASB 16 severance benefits. Praviously, severance benefits typically
accounted for under GASB 45 were valued with GASE 16 liabilities. Based on discussions with the
District and the District's auditors, GASB 45 severance benefits based on years of service are now
included with GASB 45 retiree medical benefits.

Since the iast valuation the foliowing other changes have been made:

- Withdrawai, retirement and mortality rates for teachers were updated from the rates used in the
2013 Duluth Teachers' Retirement Fund Association valuation to the rates used in the 2014 Teachers
Retirement Association valuation to reflect current pension plan participation.

- Healthcare trend rates were reset to reflect updated cost increase expectations.

- The discount rate was updated from 4.00% to 3.75% based on updated expectations of long-term
20-year general obligation municipal bond rates.

- Medical per capita claims costs were updated to refiect recent experience.

- The inflation assurmption was changed from 3.00% to 2.75% based on an updated historical analysis
of inflation rates and forward-looking market expectations.

- The spouse age assumption was changed from assuming husbands are same age as wives to
assuming husbands are thrae years older than wives.

- Based on GASB 16 provisions, the GASB 18 liabilities were changed to assume a 0% discount rate
and no future increases in unused sick leave, unused vacation leave or salary.
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Sehedule of Employer Share of Net Pension Liability

Statement A- 3

Teacher's Retirement Assogiation {TRA)

Stata's Employers
Employar's Proparticnate Proportionate
Proporionate Share of Mt Share of Nat
Employer's Share (Amt) of Parsion Fension Liability Plan Fiduciary
Proportion (%) Net Pension Liability Empioyer's {Asset) as & % of  Net Fosition as a
Maasuremant  of Net Pensfon Liability associated with Coverad Payroll  Govered Payrolt % of Total
Date Liability {a) (histrict Totat {by {a/b) Panslon Liablitty
June 30, 2048 0.8681% 3 207,082,581 $ 20,782,926 § 227845489 § 45155373 458.6% 44.88%
June 33, 2016 Q0.7225% $ 44 698,771 $ 5481972 $  BG175.743 § 35688947 121.8% 76.80%
Culuth Teacher's Retirement Fund Association (DTRFA}
Slates Ermplayars
Employet's Proportionate Proportionats
Proportionate Share of Net Shave of Net
Employers Share (Amt) of Pansion Pension Liability Flan Fiduciary
Proporgion (%) Met Pansion Liability Employer's {Asset) as @ % of Net Posiionasa
Maasurement  of Net Pension Liabifity associated with Covered Payroll  Coverad Payrall % of Total
Date Liability {a) District Totat (b} {aln) Pension Liability
June 30, 2014 31.8004% % 81,187,076 $ 81187076 $ 42238042 182.2% 46.80%
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA)
State's Employers
Emplayer's Proportionate Proportionate
Proportionate Shara of Net Share of Net
Employers Share (Amt) of Pension Pension Liahiity Plan Fiduciary
Proportion (%) Net Pension Liability Employer's (Asselyas a % of  Net Positionasa
Measurement of Net Pensicn Liability asscciated with Cavered Payroll Covered Payrolt % of Tota
Date Liabitity {a} District Total b} {alk) Pension Liabifity
June 30, 2018 T.2547% $ 20,680,377 $ 279,170 $ 20,980,547 § 15804547 130.9% 68.60%
June 30, 2015 0.2582% $ 13,381,284 5 13381284 & 14,926,483 89.6% 78.20%
June 30, 2074 5.2718% 5 12,772,600 $ 12,772,600 $ 14,262,168 89.6% 78.70%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Teacher's Retirement Association {TRA)

Contributions in

Ratation to the
Statuorily Statutority Contribution Contributions as
Required Requirac Deficiency & Percantage of
Fiscat Year Centripution Contribution {Excess} Covered Payroil  Covered Payrolt
Enging {a) () (a-b) (d) (b/d)
June 30, 2017 $ 3582555 $ 3,582,555 $ - $ 47787400 7 50%
June 36, 2016 5 3,388,653 5 3,388,683 $ - § 45185373 7.80%
Duiuth Taacher's Retirement Fund Association (DTRFA)
Contributions in
Relatior: fo the
Statuorily Stawstarity Contribution Confributions as
Required Required Deficency a Percentage of
Fiscal Year Contribution Caontribution {Exzass) Cavered Payroll  Coverad Payroi
Ending {a) {0} {a-bj (d) {b/d)
June 30, 2015 § 2,750,171 k) 275017 § § 36,668,947 T.50%
Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA}
Centributions in
Relation to the
Statuoriky Statutorily Contribution Contributions as
Required Radguired Deficiency a Percentage of
Fiscal Year Contribution Contribution (Excass) Covered Payroll  Covered Payroll
Ending {a) o] {z-b) {d) (bid)
June 30, 20t7 § 1,248,385 § 1,248,355 % $ 18,839,683 7.50%
June 30, 2016 $ 1,185,328 § 1,186,328 £ $ 16,804,347 7.50%
June 30, 2018 & 1118484 % 1,118,484 5 - & 14,926,453 7.25%
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA
Statement B-1

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2017
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Qver
Budget {Under) Prior Year
Qriginat Final Actual Final Budget Actual
Revenues
tocal property tax levies $ - $ - L - $ $ 1,018,493
Interest income - - 1,432 1,432 1,868
Other focat and county - - -
State sources - - - 168,064
Total Revenues $ - $ - 3 1432 $ 1432 § 1,188,528
Expenditures
Sites, buildings and equipment $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 302,644
Capital Cutlay 1,647,187 2,069,920 3,126,913 {1,059,993) 3,355,353
Total Expenditures 5 1947187 & 2080020 § 3128013 % {1,055993) § 3,857,997
Net change in fund balance $ (1847187000 $ (20699200 % (3,128481) % (1,058,861 % (2468471
Fund Balance _
Beginning of Year 3,128,668 5,508 139
End of Year $ 187 $ 3,128,668
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Revenues
Local property tax levies
Interest income
State sources
Federal sources

Total Revenues
Expenditures

Principal

Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Quer
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from bonds and ioans, net
Bond refunding payments from escrow
Fremium on bonds

Total Other Financing Sources {Uses)

Net charge in fund balance

Fund Balance
Beginning of Year

End of Year

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NQ. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2017
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 390, 2016

Statement C-1

Cver

Budget {Under) Prior Year

QOriginal Final Actual Final Budget Actual
$ 17855434 17,655,434 §  18,407310 % 751,876 19,112,825
586,891 566,891 1,367 257
2,260,641 2,280,641 2,227,054 (33,547} 2,080,428
832,576 932,576 932,076 {500) 972,302
§ 20,848 851 20,848,651 § 22133371 % 1,284,720 23,542 812
$ 11,725,000 16,185,000 $ 11,495000 &% 4,700,000 11,880,000
10,721,288 12,489 253 8,863,280 3,825,973 10,803,367
$ 22446296 286884253 § 20,158,280 % 8,525,973 22,783,367
$ (1,597 645 {7,835802) % 1,975,081 % 9,810,693 759,445
$ - 6,237,957 § 82805000 % 76,3567043 -

(8,522,522 {8,522 522}

11,521,782 11,621,782 -

§ - 6237957 § 85804280 $§ 79,368,303 -
$  (1,587.645) (1,587645) § B7579351 § 89176996 759,445
51,018,504 50,259,059
$ 138 597 855 51,018,504
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DULUTH, MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
OTHER FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2017

With Comparative Amounts at June 30, 2016

Statement D1

Food Community
Service Services Totals
Fund Fund 2017 2018
Assets
Cash and investments $ 756954 % 1931,144 § 2688088 $ 2238829
Taxes and credits receivable 597,845 597,845 584,616
Accounts and interest receivable 11,33¢ 5,564 16,903 38,018
Due from
Department of Education 342,835 342 635 400,338
Federal through Department of Education 59,812 12,775 72,587 141,528
Federa! - direct 208,280 209,280 £594 299
inventory 123,829 123,829 102 138
Prepayments 1,516 3,485 5,001 7,676
Total Assets 3 953,450 3 3,102,728 $ 4,058,178 $ 4,217,442
Deferred Oufflows of Resources
Total assets and deferred
outfiows of resources 3 953450 % 3102728 0§ 40856178 $ 4217442
Lizbilities
Salaries payable $ % 383,360 5 383,360 % 589,905
Accounts payable 51,402 226,195 277,597 185,528
Bue to
Other funds 986,433 96,433 116,619
Unearned revenue 8,529 8529 885
Total Liabilities 3 51402 % 715517 % 766919 &% 892 737
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes levied for subsequent
year's expenditures $ $ 1028842 $ 1028842 $ 1,020,508
Unavailable revenue - delinguent
property taxes 70,507 70,507 74,238
Totai Deferred inflows of Resources $ $ 1080349 & 1089349 $ 1,094,744
Fund Balance
NonSpendable:
inventory 3 123828 % $ 123829 % 102,138
Prepayments 1,518 3,485 5,001 7876
Restricted for:
Community education 773758 773,759 694,418
Early childhood family education 185,894 165,884 275,964
School readiness 260,060 260,080 226,145
Aduit basic education 24 659 24,659 95,360
Community service 30,005 30,005 30,005
Food service 776,703 776,703 798,254
Total Fund Balance ) 502,048 § 1287862 § 2188910 $ 2,229,861
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balance $ 953450 & 3102728 § 4056178 § 4,217 442
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA
Statement D-2

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
OTHER FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2017
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Food Community
Service Services Totals
Fund Fund 2017 2016
Revenues
Local property tax levies 3 3 944,380 $ 944390 3 082,312
Other local and county 20,972 1,934,160 1,955,132 2,079,045
State sources 217,925 2,552,408 2,770,333 2505427
Federal sources 2,531,315 1,967,794 4,489,108 4,445 839
Sales and other conversions of assets 1,260,811 1,260,811 1,157 949
Total Revenues $ 4031023 3 7,398,752 $ 11429775 % 11,174,572
Expenditures
Community education and services $ $ 7424128 § 7424128 $ 7178,050
Pupil support services 3,977,037 3,977,037 3,817,923
Capital outlay £3,309 15,352 68,681 81,931
Total Expenditures 3 4030346 3§ 7439480 % 11469826 $§ 11,077,904
Net change in fund batance 3 877 % (40,728) % (40,081) § 96,668
Fund Balance
Beginning of Year 901,371 1,328 590 2,229 961 2,133,293
End of Year $ 502,048 % 1,287,862 $ 2189910 § 2228061
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Revenues
Other local and county
State sources
Federal sources
Sales and other conversions of assets

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Pupif support services
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Fund Balance
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Schedule E-1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOOD SERVICE FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2017
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Over
Budget {(Under) Pricr Year
Original Final Actual Final Budget Actual

3 5000 § 19,040 20972 § 1832 % 10,029
166,000 166,000 217,925 51,925 232,015
2,371,000 2,371,000 2,531,315 160,315 2,389,971
1,198,000 1,188,000 1,260,811 62,811 1,157,949
$ 3740000 % 3,754,040 4,031,023 & 276983 % 3,769,864
$ 4079837 § 4,083,837 3977037 % 108,800 &% 3,817,923
34,000 66,800 53,309 13,491 75,774
$§ 4113837 % 4150837 4,030,346 % 120,291 § 3 893,697
3 3 (398,597} 877 % 397274 % (123,733)
301,371 1,025,104
902,048 $ 901,371

INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA

Schedule F-1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30, 2017
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2016
Over
Budget {Linder) Prior Year
Original Finat Actual Final Budget Actual
Revenues
Local property tax levies $ 045187  § 945,187 % 944390 $ (787} 3% 982,312
Other local and county 1,894,000 1,705,344 1,934,160 228 816 2,069,018
State sources ; 2,384,403 2,384,403 2,552,408 168,005 2,273 412
Federal sources e 2,097,071 2,031,584 1,967,794 {(63,790) 2,075,868
Total Revenues 3 7,120,661 & 7086518 § 7,398,752 % 332,234 3 7,404 508
Expenditures
Community education and services 3 7301443 % 7238811 § 7424128 % (185217} § 7,178,050
Capital outiay 8,900 15,289 15,352 {(63) 6,157
Total Expenditures $ 7308343 § 7254200 § 7439480 § {185280) § 7,184,207
Net change in fund balance 3 (187.882) § (187.682) § (40,728) § 146,954  § 220,401
Fund Balance
Beginning of Year 1,328,550 1,108,189
End of Year % 1,287,862 $ 1,328,530
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 709
DULUTH, MINNESOTA
Schedule G-1

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF CASH RECEIPTS, CASH DISBURSEMENTS, AND CASH BALANCES
STUDENT ACTIVITIES ACCOUNTS AND CERTAIN CURRICULAR AND CO-CURRICULAR ACCOUNTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Disbursements

Cash Balance Receipts and and Cash Balance
Activity 6/30/2016 Transfers In Transfers Out 6/30/2017
High Schools
Denfeld 3 354,077 3 422289 3 462,496 3 313,850
East 311,802 681,905 742 641 251,066
Total High Schools $ 665,879 $ 1,104,175 $ 1,205,137 $ 564,916
Middle Schools
Lincoln Park 3 50,008 $ 51,440 $ 54,643 $ 46,856
Ordean East 117,300 89,030 81,319 125,011
Total Middle Schools $ 167,398 $ 140,470 $ 135,961 $ 171,806
Elementary Schools
Congdon Park 3 11,287 3 57,009 3 52,598 $ 15,698
Homegcroft 10,244 37,878 29,613 18,510
Lakewsood 23,804 20,091 17,173 26,522
Laura MacArthur 18,756 18,359 15,523 21,591
Lester Park 25189 32,353 30,933 26,608
Lowell 8,569 45,853 9,550 44 872
Myers-Wilking 64,300 14,954 14,644 64,609
Piedmont 9,373 27,789 25,578 7,684
Stowe 46,956 16,364 20,601 42719
Total Elementary Schools $ 218,276 $ 270,649 3 220,213 $ 268,712
ALC/Unity 3 16,748 3 1,623 3 6,178 3 12,093
Barnes Early Childhood 5,088 4,783 4938 4,935
Merritt Creek Academy 1,101 83 333 851
Public School Stadium 1,758 - 1,758 -
Woodland Hills 1,456 42 823 675
Total Student Activities $ 1,077,702 $ 1,521,724 $ 1,575,338 $ 1,024,089
District Funds
Co-curricular 3 932,951 $ 1,276,945 3 1,353,529 3 856,367
Extra-curricular 144 751 243,021 223,051 167,722
Total Funds $ 1,077,702 $ 1,519,966 $ 1,573,580 $ 1,024,089
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INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 709

Ayt

DULUTH, MINNESOTA

FISCAL COMPLIANCE TABLE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

LUFARS Audil . JFARS

Ut GENERAL FUNDH
Total revenuss 3
Totnl axpendiiures
Nog spendable

480 Non spendable fund balance
Restrictad/Rasone

403 Siall development

405 {eterrad maintsnance

A0E Heaih and safaty

AG¢ Caplial Projecls Lavy

40} Copperative ravenl:s

411 Severance pay

413 Project funded by COP

414 Operaling dabl

418 Lavy reduciion

#17 Tzconite building mainienanca

433 Larain loscher progeame

424 Oparstng tapital

478 $26 Taconite

427 Disadlod aceessiblliny

438 Learming antd davelapment

A3 Ao livardieg contny

435 Contracied 6f. Programe

436 St approvad ai. Program

438 Glfter & tainnied

440} Teachor Devaiopment and Evai

A4% Yasic skils program

44% Career and lachnicsl Programs

445 First Grada Pragaradness

44% Szle schaols lewy

48 Prakindergarian

A84 Q2AB paymies

452 OPER hawility not in st

453 Uniunded sev & retirement levy

a57 LTFM

472 Miedical Assigtanca
Restricted

464 Resinatsd fund balancs
Commified

418 Commilted for separation

461 Cammillst fund baiance
Agsigned

462 Assignad fund balanca
Unassigneg

422 Unassigned fund batanoe

11,867 815
04,845 Bas

175,406

188,74

106,600

174,267

1485 864)

G2 FOOD SERVICE
Fotal revanuas
Total sxpendilures
Hon spandebis
460 Noo spendable fund balnca
Restricted
452 CPEB Hability ned in rust
434 Roesiicwd fund baisnog
Urigsgigned
463 Ustassignad fund balastos

4031623
4000345

126,345

BT

04 COMMUNITY SERVICE
Tekdl revenuag
Tolal evpendituras
en spendable
450 Non speodaide furd balance
Rastricied/Reserve
428 §25 tconite
431 Community otucasion
433 EOFE
440 Teschar dev and avalustion
444 School readinuss
447 Adul Hasic Education
452 OPER fiahility nod in trust
Rasiiciod
484 Rastricted lund balancs

7,358,152
7,430,480

3,465
773,759
195,804
2B0.060

24659

30008
Unassignad
483 Unassigned Tund balence

06 BUILIING CORSTRUCTION
Toial ravenues
Totaf expenditures
Mon spendable

487 Mon spendabla fusd balance
Resiricted/Raserva

AUT Down paymend lavy

485 Alternalive tacilly program

413 Projects funded by COP
Rastricted

484 Resiicisd fund balence
Unassigned

483 Unassignad fund belance

& 101887615 $
104,543 848

128408

07 DEBT SERVICE
Toisl revenues
Toial upenditures
Non spendable

A8( Nen spendable fund balance
Resiriclod/Raserve

425 ford refundings

451 GZAA paymenls
Restristed

464 Roslisted fund bafsnoes
Utsgeigned

483 Uneasigrad fund balance

AE L e ]

100,860

08 TRUST

Yoial revenuas

Tolsl expandibires
422 Met position

2 INTERNAL SERVICE
Total revenuss
Telal axpandiburas

422 Net posiion

176,282

25 OPEB REVOCABLE TRUST FUND

Totat reverues
Totst axpendituray
422 Mgt position

4% OPEB IRREVOCABLE TRUST FUND

Total revanues
Towl expandires
447 el posliion

{4B5,855) 1

47 GPED DEAT SERVICE FUND
Tolst revanuas
Tolui expendifures
Nen spendabls

460 Mo spencable fund bilance
Restrnlad

428 Bond rehingmgs

AG4 Residcled fund balance
Unassigned

45 Unassignad furd balance

4,031,023
4.530,346

128345

TF8,703

¥ 398,762
7,439,480

3485
773,760 o)
145,894
260,080

25,558

30,605

Augil

LIFARS

Audit - UFARS.

1,432
3128813

87

22,333,371
20,158,280

132,981,381

5,635,454

286,14
206,000
2,609,103

B4T 226
R
163841

§

1432
2,128.913

187

23,37
20,158,280

132,651,381

5.598.403

285,141
200,006
2,003,184

B47.226
516,624
183,561

Page 82



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON LEGAL
COMPLIANCE FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA



Independent Auditor’s Report on Legal
Compliance for the State of Minnesota

To the Schoo! Board
independent School District No. 708
Duluth, Minnescta

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the standards
appiicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmentai activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Independent School District No. 709, Duluth, Minnesota ({District), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report therean
dated December 1, 2017,

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for School Districts, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to
Minnesota Statute §6.65, covers seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits
and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, ¢iaims and disbursements, miscellanecus provisions,
and uniform financiai accounting and reporting standards for school districts. Our audit considered all of the listed
categories,

In connegction with our audit, nothing came to cur attention that caused us to believe that the District failed to
comply with the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Schooi Districts, However, our audit
was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed
additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the District’s noncompliance with
the above provisions.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

W%a LLP
Wipfli LLP

December 1, 2017
Duluth, Minnesota
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